
1902 - Serving Our Community for over 115 Years - 2018 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 AT 7:00 P.M.  
RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 

 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

 
Board Members District Manager 
Edward P. Moritz, President Phil Scott 
Fran Dehn, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District Legal Counsel 
David Walker, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
 
NOTE:  The Board may take action on any agendized item unless specifically designated a 
“discussion” item or a “report.” 
 
1.  Call to Order and Roll Call 

2.  Communications from the Public 

3. Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed Solid Waste/Recycling Collection Rates for the 
Year 2019 Pg. 3-1 

4. Consideration of Resolution to Approve Solid Waste/Recycling Collection Rates Effective 
January 1, 2019, and adoption of the rates for “Rates for Other Services”, and accept the Solid 
Waste/Recycling Rate Study 2019 Pg. 4-1 

5. Discussion and Update on FERRF (Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility) Levee 
Project Pg. 5-1 

6. Consider Authorizing the District Manager to Execute an Amendment for Additional Services to 
the FERRF Levee Improvement Project Consultant Agreement with Freyer & Laureta, Inc. Pg. 
6-1 

7.   District Manager’s Report Pg. 7-1 
 
8.  Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The 
motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member 
of the Board. 

  
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting November 14, 2018 Pg. 8A-1 

 
B. Approval of the Withdrawal Order Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills 

  and Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters for December 12, 
  2018 Pg.  8B-1 
 

C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – November 2018 Pg. 8C-1 



 
 

D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by  
  WBSD – November 2018 Pg. 8D-1 
 

E. Consider to Ratify and Approve Report on District’s Investment Portfolio Including the  
 Transactions of Assets Described Therein as of 11/30/18 Pg.  8E-1 
 

9. Consideration of Adopting the District’s Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 
30, 2018 Pg. 9-1 

10. Consideration to Approve the Post Audit FY2018-19 Internal Financial Statements & Analysis of 
Financial Position for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018 Pg. 10-1 

11. Report and Discussion: Finance Advisory Group Pg. 11-1 

12. Consider Resolution to Elect to the District Board, President, and Secretary, and Appoint a 
Treasurer and Consider Appointment of Committee Appointees and Alternates  Pg. 12-1 

13. Discussion and Direction on Recycled Water Projects - Sharon Heights & Bayfront, Including  
  Project Status Pg. 13-1 

 
14.   Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Pg. 14-1 
 
15.     Report & Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on SVCW CIP  
          Program and Financing Pg. 15-1 
 
16. Closed Session:  
 

A.         CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

(Pursuant to Cal. Govt. Code §54957.6)Agency designated representatives: District 
Manager & Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented Employees: Accountant, Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Cal. Govt. Code §54956.9(d)) 
Name of Case:  1740 Oak Avenue, LP v. West Bay Sanitary District, et al. – SMCSC 
Case No. 18CIV02183 

 
C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION/CONF. WITH LABOR 

NEGOTIATORS 
Agency designated representatives:  Board President/Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented employee:  District Manager 

 
17. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed  
 on Future Agenda  
         
18.     Adjournment  
 
The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 
wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 
in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation.  



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, Operations Manager 

 

Subject: Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed Solid 

Waste/Recycling Collection Rates for the Year 2019 

 
Background 

As a member of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), West Bay 
Sanitary District, as well as the other Member Agencies is closing the eighth year of the new 
Collection Services provided by Recology San Mateo County. The transition to these 
services commencing on January 1, 2011 has been significant in not just the expanded 
scope of services but also on diversion of materials from landfill. We’ve seen significant 
increases in residential recycling and organic materials collection. Solid waste generation 
has significantly decreased.  The collection services now include more convenient weekly 
collection of single stream recycling, organic materials (yard trimmings and food scraps) 
and solid waste.  The Shoreway Environmental Center which is operated by South Bay 
Recycling has undergone substantial capital improvements to facilitate single stream 
recycling service provided by Recology, enhance onsite public recycling activities and 
greatly improve traffic circulation.   
 

The Board has expressed the need to actively move rates toward a “cost for service” level. 
This requires rates to be adjusted so customers are paying their fair share for the service 
they receive.  In order to accomplish this, rate adjustments will be necessary in both 
increases and reductions to the rates.  Considerations taken for such adjustments are as 
follow: 
 

 The 20 gallon container rate nor the 32 gallon container rate approaches paying for 
the true cost for collection and processing; 

 Based on revenue requirements Commercial customers are not required to 
contribute more towards the refuse collection program at this time; and 

 Implementation of the proposed rate adjustments will assist in balancing the cost of 
service in the program. 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

 

In the past, residential rates were set to incentivize the use of smaller containers and 

promote more recycling. This was done by making small residential container rates much 

lower than the larger residential containers. With the outreach efforts over the past 8 years 

and educating residents on the importance of recycling, Staff feels the incentive aspect of 

the rate is no longer warranted. In some cases, it’s been reported that the 20 gallon 

container users may be contributing to cross contamination of recyclables because the can 

is too small for their need and excess waste ends up in the recycling container. Therefore, if 

a customer really needs a 32 gallon container versus a 20 gallon container the price 

difference should not be set artificially low so as to dissuade someone from acquiring the 

size can that best fits their needs. This should help avoid the unintended consequence of 

cross contamination, by having the 20 gallon can rate artificially low. The Board’s goal is to 

have customers pay rates that are more in line with cost for service.  

The District has participated in talks with the County of San Mateo (County) to potentially 
have the County manage the District’s solid waste collection program. The District’s solid 
waste program is in the unincorporated areas of the County. It appears it would be 
beneficial to the public to have the County manage the solid waste program in these areas, 
as they do other parts of the County. The process will need to include San Mateo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) approval and a vote by the SBWMA Joint Powers 
Authority. Talks with the County are on-going at this time. 
 
Analysis 
 
HF&H Consultants, LLC were contracted this year to perform a rate analysis for the 2019 
rates (Attachment 1). The rate study analyzed rates that are more in line with “Cost for 
Service” and reviewed rates for residential and commercial services. On October 10, 2018 
the Board was asked to establish a date for a public hearing on the new Solid Waste rates 
for December 12, 2018.  

 

As we have seen in other jurisdictions over the past few years the District’s rate structure 
has encouraged customers to “downsize” their solid waste container by placing more 
materials in their recyclable material and organics carts, rather than in their solid waste 
containers; ultimately, reducing the amount of trash sent to the landfill.  As customers 
reduce their container size, less revenue is generated; however, there is not an equal 
reduction of the cost to drive by, collect, and process the materials.  Only 21.0% of 
residents (those customers receiving 64- or 96-gallon service) cover the fixed costs to 
provide such service (see Table 4 of the HF&H Rate Study). The District has been able to 
keep the residential rates lower than necessary because, as was the industry practice, 
commercial revenues have contributed more than the cost of their services.  Because of 
these factors the District will consider increasing the 20-gallon and 32-gallon rates a greater 
percentage than the 64 and 96 gallon rates in order to have the smaller containers pay a 
larger percentage of their fixed costs but still remain lower than the 64 gallon rate to 
incentivize customers to reduce the amount of materials disposed of in the landfill. The 
aligning of residential rates to the cost of service at each container size and the overall 

reduction of the commercial customer class rates by a flat percentage over time, achieves 
the District’s objective of a cost of service rate structure. 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

 

At its October 10, 2018 meeting, the District’s Board was presented with a rates study 
suggesting adjustments to the rates to achieve cost of service levels for solid waste and 
recycling collection. Over the past 2 years the District has chosen to implement, as part of a 
3 to 5 year plan, rate adjustments for residential and commercial which will close the gap 
between the rates and the cost for the 20 gallon and 32 gallon services while generating 
sufficient revenue to cover the projected collection and processing costs.  

 

District Board Proposed Rate Adjustments 

Solid Waste/Recycling Collection Rates for 2019 
 

  MONTHLY RATES 

Customer 

 
Service Level 

Current 

Monthly 

Rate 

Proposed 

Monthly Rate 
Monthly 

Increase (Decrease) 

Residential:  
$35.00 

 
$39.00 

 
$4.00 20 gallon can 

32 gallon can $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 

64 gallon can $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 

96 gallon can $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 

 

*Commercial:(Per Pick Up) 
 

Current 
 

Proposed 
 

Increase(Decrease) per pickup 

1 yard bin $205.60 $195.32 ($10.28) 

2 yard bin $390.19 $370.68 ($19.51) 

3 yard bin $434.51 $412.78 ($21.73) 

4 yard bin $579.33 $550.36 ($28.97) 

6 yard bin $718.19 $682.28 ($35.91) 

32-Gallon Cart $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 

64-Gallon Cart $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 

96-Gallon Cart $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 

 
 

 
Proposition 218  

For a rate increase to be considered for adoption, public noticing and majority protest 

procedures as outlined by Proposition 218 need to be followed (Attachment 2). 

Notifications were distributed by the end of October 2018.  

3-3



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

 

Fiscal Impact  

2019 Rate Options  
 
Staff reviewed several rate options to fund the solid waste service program for 2019.  Staff 
received confirmation from the Board as to the desired rate structure below, which meets 
the needs expressed by the Board members. 

 

Recommendation 

   

The District Manager recommends the adoption of a $4.00 rate increase applied to the 

residential 20 gallon container, a $5.00 rate increase applied to the 32 gallon container, zero 

increases to the 64 and 96 gallon container, as well as a 5% (-) reduction to the Commercial 

Bin rates for 2019. In addition the District Manager recommends the adoption of the rates 

for “Rate for Other Services” as described in attachment 3 of this report.  With the adoption 

of these adjustments, West Bay’s rates for residential and commercial customers would 

become closer to a “cost of service” level. 
 

Therefore; after allowing public comment and closing the Public Hearing, and provided that 
less than fifty percent of the District’s ratepayers appeared at the Public Hearing to protest 
the proposed rate increase, the District Manager recommends: 

 

1. The Board adopt the rate adjustments presented at the Public Hearing dated for 
December 12, 2018, for the proposed refuse collection rates for year 2019 effective 
January 1, 2019, including the “Rates for Other Services” (Attachment 3); and 

2. Accept the Solid Waste Rate Study by HF&H dated October 10, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments:  Attachment 1—Solid Waste/Recycling Rate Study for 2019 

Attachment 2—218 notice 

  Attachment 3 – “Rates for Other Services” Attachment Q 
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Distance charge—MFD and Commer-
cial Accounts 

A – 10% of base monthly 
rate 

B – 25% of base monthly 
rate 

A – 51 to 100 feet from access by con-
tractor’s collection vehicle 

B – 101 feet or more from access by 
contractor’s collection vehicle 

Extra Pick-Up Cost—MFD and Com-
mercial Accounts 

25% of the base monthly 
rate for the size of container 
collected once per week 

Per collection event 

Additional Targeted Recyclable Materi-
als or Organic Materials Cart Rental or 
Purchase 

A -- $ 3.43 

B -- $71.97 

  
C -- $78.83 

  

A – Monthly rental fee (any size cart) 
B – Customer purchase of a 64 gallon 
cart 
C – Customer purchase of a 96 gallon 
cart 

Collection of Contaminated Targeted 
Recyclable Materials or Organic Materi-
als Container 

25% of the base monthly 
rate for the size of container 
collected once per week 

 Plus:  $17.14 

Per collection event 

Key Service 
A -- $9.71 per month 

B -- $10.85 per month 

A – Residential Customers 

B – Commercial Customers 

Lock Purchase $19.42 –one time charge 
One-time charge per account.  No fee 
for replacement locks. 

Overage Fee 100% of base monthly rate Per collection event 

Overage Bags 
50% of the base monthly 
rate or $9.13 minimum 

Rate per bag 

Container Cleaning 
A -- $57.13 

B -- $97.11 

A – per Cart 
B – per Bin or Drop-Box 

Dirty Cart Replacement 
A -- $74.25 

B -- $85.68 

C -- $97.11 

A – per 32 gallon Cart 
B – per 64 gallon Cart 
C – per 96 gallon Cart 

 

Service Category Rate Description of Rate 

Backyard Collection Service—Single 
Family Dwelling 

For one Solid Waste Cart: 
  

$20.56 (0-50 ft) 
$23.99 (51-100 ft) 

Rates vary based on distance & number 
of carts. 
Contact the District for rates for distanc-
es beyond 100 feet and for more than 
one solid waste cart. 

Return Trip Cost—Single Family 
Dwelling   (Request to provide collec-
tion service after the regularly sched-
uled collection day) 

$17.14 Per collection event. 

On-Call Bulky Item Collection $93.17 

Per each collection event beyond first 2 
per year. 
 (Each customer receives 2 free bulky 
collections per year) 

Rates for Other Services 
The following are rates that would be charged for unscheduled services as necessary  

Additional Compost Material Delivery  
 A -- $142.81 

 B -- $285.62 

 

A – One way delivery 

B – Round trip delivery 
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If you would like additional information on the 
proposed rates, please call the District at 650-
321-0384. 
 
If you wish to file a written protest, please send 
a letter in a sealed envelope addressed to: 
 

 West Bay Sanitary District  
Attn: District Manager (Solid Waste Rates) 
 500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025  

 
Your letter must identify the real property you 
own or rent by street address and assessor’s 
parcel number (APN).  Your letter must be legi-
bly signed by any one of the current property 
owners or ratepayers of record. 
 
The District must receive your letter in a sealed 
envelope by 4:00 p.m. on December 12, 2018 
or it must be presented at the District Board 
meeting on December 12, 2018 prior to the 
close of the public hearing on this matter. 
 
Any person interested, including all solid waste/
recycling collection customers of the West Bay 
Sanitary District, may appear at the public hear-
ing and be heard on any matter related to the 
proposed increase in rates. 
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NOTICE OF INTENT TO INCREASE COLLECTION RATES FOR SOLID WASTE/RECYCLABLE  

MATERIALS IN THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

The District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District hereby gives public notice of its intent to increase some of 
the existing residential rates for the  collection of recyclable materials, compost, and refuse for 2019. The  
District Board plans to consider this rate increase at a public hearing on December 12, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Board Conference Room located at 500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park. 
 
The need for this increase was discussed by the District Board at the October 10,  2018 Regular Board 
meeting.  The staff report for this matter is available at the District Office located at  500 Laurel Street, 
Menlo Park or online at www.westbaysanitary.org 
 
Approximately fifty-five percent (55%) of residential  service containers are a 32 gallon size.  The new rate for 
2019 for a 32 gallon container would increase from $44.00 per month to $49.00 per month, a $5.00 per month 
increase. The new rate for the 20 gallon container would increase from $35.00 per month to $39.00 per month, 
a $4.00 per month increase.    
 
The District’s proposed rates would remain amongst the range of all the agencies. For comparison purposes, 
the maximum typical residential rates for 32 gallon containers for SBWMA Cities including Atherton, Burlin-
game, Belmont, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, and San Mateo, range from a low of 
$21.24 (San Mateo) to a high of $50.00 (Atherton), based upon 2018 rates.  

 
The following table shows the current rates and the proposed monthly rates for West Bay Sanitary District      
Franchised Customers to be effective beginning January 1, 2019.   

 

(Continued) Rates for Other Services 

*Commercial bin rates reflect collection 

charge for one pick up per week; To calcu-

late charge for more than one collection per 

week, multiply rate by number of collections 

per week. For example, 1-Cubic Yard Bin (at 

proposed rate) collected 3 times per week = 

$585.96 ($195.32 x 3 collections/wk) 

 

NECESSITY FOR THE NEW RATES 
  
The West Bay Sanitary District is a member of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, and  con-
tracts with Recology San Mateo County (RSMC) and South Bay Recycling (SBR) for collection services and 
operation of the Shoreway Center, respectively, as of January 1, 2011.  The proposed rates result from the 
weekly recycling, organic materials and solid waste collection  services and Shoreway operations provided 
by RSMC and SBR, contractual compensation adjustments, and migration to smaller containers.  
 
The collection services include the more convenient weekly collection, rather than bi-weekly collection, of 
single stream recycling, organic materials (yard trimmings and food scraps) and solid waste.  The Shoreway 
facility has also undergone substantial capital improvements to construct a new Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF) and an expanded Transfer Station.  These improvements facilitate single stream (mixed) recycling, 
enhance onsite public recycling activities, and improve traffic circulation at the Shoreway Facility.   
 
The District is in the third year of a multi-year pricing restructuring plan, so that a transition is made whereby 
the smaller cans will support the cost of collection and disposal. 
 
The West Bay Sanitary District hereby gives notice of a public hearing to be held at its Board meeting on 
December 12 , 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Districts “Ronald W. Shepherd” Administration Building located at 
500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA.  At this hearing, the Board of Directors will consider public comment as 
well as written protests by ratepayers regarding the proposed increase in monthly collection rates.  If written 
protests are  presented by a majority of the affected ratepayers prior to the close of the public hearing, the 
Board of Directors will not increase the rates as a matter of State law, however levels of service may be im-
pacted. 

Serving Our Community Since 1902 

500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, California 94025-3486  

(650) 321-0384 (650)321-4265 FAX 

Customer

Service Level

Residential:

20 gallon can $35.00 $39.00 $4.00 $105.00 $117.00 $12.00

32 gallon can $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 $132.00 $147.00 $15.00

64 gallon can $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 $216.00 $216.00 $0.00

96 gallon can $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 $315.00 $315.00 $0.00

*Commercial:(Per Pick Up) Current Proposed Incr (decr) per pick up

1 yard bin $205.60 $195.32 ($10.28) n/a n/a n/a

2 yard bin $390.19 $370.68 ($19.51) n/a n/a n/a

3 yard bin $434.51 $412.78 ($21.73) n/a n/a n/a

4 yard bin $579.33 $550.36 ($28.97) n/a n/a n/a

6 yard bin $718.19 $682.28 ($35.91) n/a n/a n/a

32-Gallon Cart $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 n/a n/a n/a

64-Gallon Cart $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 n/a n/a n/a

96-Gallon Cart $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 n/a n/a n/a

Proposed Maximum Solid Waste Rates for 2019

Current 

Monthly 

Rate

Proposed 

Monthly Rate

Monthly 

Increase (Decrease)

Current 

Quarterly 

Rate

Proposed 

Quarterly 

Rate

Quarterly 

Increase

MONTHLY RATES QUARTERLY RATES
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EXHIBIT A 

RATES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

 

 

Following are rates that would be charged for unscheduled services as necessary:   
 

Service Category Rate Description of Rate 

Backyard Collection Service—Single 

Family Dwelling 

For one Solid Waste Cart: 

  

$20.56 (0-50 ft) 

$23.99 (51-100 ft) 

Rates vary based on distance & number 

of carts. 

Contact the District for rates for 

distances beyond 100 feet and for more 

than one solid waste cart. 

Return Trip Cost—Single Family 

Dwelling   (Request to provide 

collection service after the regularly 

scheduled collection day) 

$17.14 Per collection event. 

On-Call Bulky Item Collection $93.17 

Per each collection event beyond first 2 

per year. 

 (Each customer receives 2 free bulky 

collections per year) 

 

Distance charge—MFD and 

Commercial Accounts 

A – 10% of base monthly 

rate 

B – 25% of base monthly 

rate 

A – 51 to 100 feet from access by 

contractor’s collection vehicle 

B – 101 feet or more from access by 

contractor’s collection vehicle 

Extra Pick-Up Cost—MFD and 

Commercial Accounts 

25% of the base monthly 

rate for the size of container 

collected once per week 

Per collection event 

Additional Targeted Recyclable 

Materials or Organic Materials Cart 

Rental or Purchase 

A -- $ 3.43 

B -- $71.97 

  

C -- $78.83 

  

A – Monthly rental fee (any size cart) 

B – Customer purchase of a 64 gallon 

cart 

C – Customer purchase of a 96 gallon 

cart 

Collection of Contaminated Targeted 

Recyclable Materials or Organic 

Materials Container 

25% of the base monthly 

rate for the size of container 

collected once per week 

 Plus: $17.14 

Per collection event 

Key Service 
A -- $9.71 per month 

B -- $10.85 per month 

A – Residential Customers 

B – Commercial Customers 

Lock Purchase $19.42 –one time charge 
One-time charge per account.  No fee 

for replacement locks. 
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EXHIBIT A 

RATES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

 

Overage Fee 100% of base monthly rate Per collection event 

Overage Bags 
50% of the base monthly 

rate or $9.13 minimum 
Rate per bag 

Container Cleaning 
A -- $57.13 

B -- $97.11 

A – per Cart 

B – per Bin or Drop-Box 

Dirty Cart Replacement 

A -- $74.25 

B -- $85.68 

C -- $97.11 

A – per 32 gallon Cart 

B – per 64 gallon Cart 

C – per 96 gallon Cart 

 

 

Additional Compost Material Delivery  

 A -- $142.81 

 B -- $285.62 

  

A – One way delivery 

B – Round trip delivery 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution to Approve Solid Waste/Recycling 

Collection Rates Effective January 1, 2019, and adoption of the 

rates for “Rates for Other Services”, and accept the Solid 

Waste/Recycling Rate Study 2019  

 

 
 

Following Public Hearing and close of public comment and there being less than 50% 
ratepayer protest to the proposed rate increase, per Proposition 218, the District 
Manager recommends the Board approve the attached resolution adopting the 
proposed Solid Waste/Recycling Collection rate increase for 2019 applied to all rate 
categories effective January 1, 2019, and adoption of the rates for “Rates for Other 
Services” as attached to the resolution, and accept the 2019 Solid Waste/Recycling 
Rate Study.  
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RESOLUTION NO.             (2018) 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING COLLECTION RATES FOR 

2019 
 

***** 
WHEREAS, on February 24, 2010 the District Board approved the Franchise Agreement 
with Recology San Mateo County for Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid 
Waste Collection Services; and  
 
WHEREAS, on October 10, 2018 a regular meeting of the West Bay Sanitary District Board 
was held to discuss the with the Board and the public the need for an increase in the Solid 
Waste/Recycling Collection Rates for 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District Board directed staff to proceed with the public notification 
procedures as outlined by Proposition 218 for the consideration of new Solid 
Waste/Recycling Collection rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, in October notifications were sent to approximately 2,240 residential and 
commercial customers in the West Bay Sanitary District; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2018 a Public Hearing was held to present to the West Bay 
Sanitary District Board and the public a review of the Solid Waste/Recycling Collection 
Rates for 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District received a minimal number of responses and protests; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Proposition 218, based on the low protest rate, the District may proceed 
with the proposed rate increase.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board that the Solid 
Waste/Recycling Collection rates for 2019 shall be as follows effective January 1, 2019: 
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Solid Waste/Recycling Collection Rates for 2019 
 

  MONTHLY RATES 

Customer 

 
Service Level 

Current 

Monthly 

Rate 

Proposed 

Monthly Rate 
Monthly 

Increase (Decrease) 

Residential:  
$35.00 

 
$39.00 

 
$4.00 20 gallon can 

32 gallon can $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 

64 gallon can $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 

96 gallon can $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 

 

*Commercial:(Per Pick Up) 
 

Current 
 

Proposed 
 

Increase(Decrease) per pickup 

1 yard bin $205.60 $195.32 ($10.28) 

2 yard bin $390.19 $370.68 ($19.51) 

3 yard bin $434.51 $412.78 ($21.73) 

4 yard bin $579.33 $550.36 ($28.97) 

6 yard bin $718.19 $682.28 ($35.91) 

32-Gallon Cart $44.00 $49.00 $5.00 

64-Gallon Cart $72.00 $72.00 $0.00 

96-Gallon Cart $105.00 $105.00 $0.00 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the collection rates for “Other Services” shall be as 
shown in the attached Exhibit A “Rates for Other Services” for 2019 effective January 1, 
2019. 
 

***** 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
regular meeting thereof held on 12th day of December, 2018, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Noes: 
 
 Absent: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 
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EXHIBIT A 

RATES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

 

 

Following are rates that would be charged for unscheduled services as necessary:   
 

Service Category Rate Description of Rate 

Backyard Collection Service—Single 

Family Dwelling 

For one Solid Waste Cart: 

  

$20.56 (0-50 ft) 

$23.99 (51-100 ft) 

Rates vary based on distance & number 

of carts. 

Contact the District for rates for 

distances beyond 100 feet and for more 

than one solid waste cart. 

Return Trip Cost—Single Family 

Dwelling   (Request to provide 

collection service after the regularly 

scheduled collection day) 

$17.14 Per collection event. 

On-Call Bulky Item Collection $93.17 

Per each collection event beyond first 2 

per year. 

 (Each customer receives 2 free bulky 

collections per year) 

 

Distance charge—MFD and 

Commercial Accounts 

A – 10% of base monthly 

rate 

B – 25% of base monthly 

rate 

A – 51 to 100 feet from access by 

contractor’s collection vehicle 

B – 101 feet or more from access by 

contractor’s collection vehicle 

Extra Pick-Up Cost—MFD and 

Commercial Accounts 

25% of the base monthly 

rate for the size of container 

collected once per week 

Per collection event 

Additional Targeted Recyclable 

Materials or Organic Materials Cart 

Rental or Purchase 

A -- $ 3.43 

B -- $71.97 

  

C -- $78.83 

  

A – Monthly rental fee (any size cart) 

B – Customer purchase of a 64 gallon 

cart 

C – Customer purchase of a 96 gallon 

cart 

Collection of Contaminated Targeted 

Recyclable Materials or Organic 

Materials Container 

25% of the base monthly 

rate for the size of container 

collected once per week 

 Plus: $17.14 

Per collection event 

Key Service 
A -- $9.71 per month 

B -- $10.85 per month 

A – Residential Customers 

B – Commercial Customers 

Lock Purchase $19.42 –one time charge 
One-time charge per account.  No fee 

for replacement locks. 
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EXHIBIT A 

RATES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

 

Overage Fee 100% of base monthly rate Per collection event 

Overage Bags 
50% of the base monthly 

rate or $9.13 minimum 
Rate per bag 

Container Cleaning 
A -- $57.13 

B -- $97.11 

A – per Cart 

B – per Bin or Drop-Box 

Dirty Cart Replacement 

A -- $74.25 

B -- $85.68 

C -- $97.11 

A – per 32 gallon Cart 

B – per 64 gallon Cart 

C – per 96 gallon Cart 

 

 

Additional Compost Material Delivery  

 A -- $142.81 

 B -- $285.62 

  

A – One way delivery 

B – Round trip delivery 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Discussion and Update on FERRF (Flow Equalization and 

Resource Recovery Facility) Levee Project  

 

 

 
 
Background 

The District is interested in utilizing Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility 
(FERRF) to recover, treat, and recycle wastewater to provide Commercial and Industrial 
users an alternate source of water for irrigation and industrial use, the site will need to 
be upgraded and protected from flooding.  
 
The FERRF site is a part of the District’s out of service wastewater treatment plant with 
ponds repurposed to serve as flow equalization during wet weather. The facility is not 
flood protected and is within the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 100-
year floodplain.  Furthermore, the County of San Mateo anticipates an additional 2-feet 
of sea level rise also from which the site is not protected.  In the near future the site 
may not be needed for flow equalization and part or all of the facility could be used for 
water resource recovery. 
 
In February 2018 the District Board reviewed and approved a Technical Memorandum 
which explored four alternatives to protecting the FERRF site, and approved the 
execution of a Consultant Agreement with Freyer & Laureta Inc., for design services for 
the FERRF (Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility) Levee Improvement 
Project to include sheet piling around the perimeter of the FERRF to protect it from King 
Tides and Sea Level Rise. 
 

Analysis  

The preliminary design was completed for sheet piling the perimeter of the FERRF and 
the District met with permitting agencies as part of a preliminary discussion on what 
requirements and criteria would need to be met in order to obtain permits for this 
project.  The Permitting Agencies suggested a Living Shoreline design (meaning a form 
of horizontal levee) would more readily receive permits and funding.  This entails re-
designing with a Living Shoreline approach.  This approach makes it a larger project but 
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one with a greater likelihood of successful grant funding, and permitting and support 
from the permitting agencies. 

The Design Consultant and Staff will be presenting information and facilitating a 
discussion with the Board to explain details of such a project in hopes of forming 
consensus of modifying the size and scope of the FERRF Levee Improvement Project. 

 

Fiscal Impact  

There is no direct fiscal impact to the discussion but subsequent implementation of a 
change in scope to the FERRF Levee Improvement project could significantly impact 
the Capital Asset Fund. 

 

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the Board engage in discussion and provide 
direction to staff as to the desired size and scope of the FERRF Levee Improvement 
project and consider the agenda item for additional services to the Levee Improvement 
Project consultant agreement.  
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WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Consider Authorizing the District Manager to Execute an 

Amendment for Additional Services to the FERRF Levee 

Improvement Project Consultant Agreement with Freyer & 

Laureta, Inc. 

 

 
 
Background 

In February 2018 the District entered into a Consultant Agreement with Freyer & 
Laureta Inc., for design services for the FERRF (Flow Equalization and Resource 
Recovery Facility) Levee Improvement Project to include sheet piling around the 
perimeter of the FERRF to protect it from King Tides and Sea Level Rise.  
 
Analysis  

After meeting with the permitting agencies in an Inter-Agency meeting, these agencies 
suggested that the District modify the plan to include a “Living Shoreline” along the 
eastern side of the FERRF.  Their meaning was interpreted as installing a form of 
horizontal levee that would not only protect the facility but provide for additional habitat. 
This approach makes it a larger project but one with a greater likelihood of successful 
permitting, grant funding and support from the permitting agencies. 

This project is deemed necessary to protect the existing facility, lift it out of the FEMA 
Flood Zone, and to secure any potential funding for the Living Shoreline or the Bayfront 
Recycled Water Facility.  

Fiscal Impact  

The additional services would equal a not-to-exceed amount of $59,273.00 above the 
original agreement total compensation amount funded from the Capital Improvement 
Fund.   

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the Board approve authorization for the District 
Manager to execute an Amendment for Additional Services to the FERRF Levee 
Improvement Project Consultant agreement with Freyer & Laureta Inc., for an additional 
amount not-to-exceed $59,273.00. 

6-1



144 North San Mateo Drive • San Mateo, California 94401 • (650) 344-9901 • www.freyerlaureta.com 

 

  CIVIL ENGINEERS  •  SURVEYORS  •  CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS 
 

 

November 26, 2018 
 

Mr. Phil Scott 
District Manager 
West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, California 94025 
 
Re: FERRF LEVEE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – ADDED SERVICES #1 
  WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT, MENLO PARK, CA 
 
Dear Mr. Scott: 
 
Freyer & Laureta, Inc. (F&L) is pleased to present this proposal to you for the conceptual de-
sign, funding strategizing, attendance of stakeholder meetings, and geotechnical engineering 
services for supporting the conceptual design for constructing a horizontal levee with living 
shoreline on the north side of the FERRF. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 
 
Task 1 – Conceptual Drawings 
The F&L team will develop up to three (3) conceptual design alternatives for the proposed Liv-
ing Shorelines project at a preliminary level of detail that is adequate to engage the District and 
the resource agencies.  Draft drawings will be submitted to the District for review and will be re-
vised once based upon a consolidated set of comments from the District. 

Topographic Survey will be performed in the area the living shoreline will be designed.  Ex-
isting topographic survey does not extend out into that area.  The same control used for 
previous surveys at the FERRF will be used for this survey. 

 
Task 2 – Stakeholders Meetings 

F&L and MIG will attend up to four (4) preliminary meetings with the client and resource agen-
cies and will prepare presentation materials as needed. These meetings are anticipated to in-
clude: 
 

• (2) Meetings with the West Bay Sanitary District 
• (2) Meetings with the Resource Agencies 
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Mr. Phil Scott 
Page 2 of 2 
November 26, 2018 
 

FREYER & LAURETA, INC. 

Task 3 – Funding Strategies 

MIG and F&L will also research and summarize potential grant funding opportunities for a 
portion of the Living Shorelines project at the site. This research will be summarized in a 
spreadsheet and brief letter report, and will include the requirements, timing, limitations, 
and potential awards associated with each grant opportunity. 

Task 4- Geotechical Engineering 

For this task, F&L will continue to contract with BAGG Engineers.   BAGG will prepare rec-
ommendations for shallow foundation system for the warehouse project and will provide 
engineering support through conceptual design for the revised site plan that includes a liv-
ing shoreline and fill along the east and south sides of the FERRF. 

 
PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE 

All work will be on a time and materials (t&m) basis, not exceed the following limits without 
District authorization.  Proposed hours can be seen in the attached Fee Breakdown Table. 
 

Task 1 – Conceptual Drawings $27,916 

Task 2 – Stakeholders Meetings $10,341 

Task 3 – Funding Strategies $6,926 

Task 4 – Geotechnical Engineering $14,090 

Total $59,273 

See Fee Breakdown Table for detail of our proposed fee. 
 
 
Phil, thank you again for the opportunity of submitting this proposal to you.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to call us. 
 
Sincerely, 
FREYER & LAURETA, INC.  

 
Richard J. Laureta, P.E. 
Pres ident 
 
Cc: Bill Kitajima, Projects Manager 
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FEE BREAKDOWN TABLE
PROJECT: West Bay Sanitary District FERRF Design Project - Added Services Proposal #1  Rev Date:  11/26/2018

Estimated Staff Hours and Budget

Freyer & Laureta, Inc. Principal Associate 
Engineer

Staff Eng. Survey Crew MIG/TRA 
Environmental 

Services

Bay Area 
Geotechnical 

Group

Misc. Expenses Fee

$225 $185 $130 $275 Fee Fee Fee

Task 1 - Conceptual Drawings 8 8 24 48 $8,316 $27,916

Task 2 - Stakeholders Meetings 16 $6,216 $525 $10,341

Task 3 - Funding Strategies 12 4 $3,486 $6,926

Task 4 -Geotechnical Engineering 8 4 $11,550 $14,090

Total Hours 44 16 24 48

Subtotals $9,900 $2,960 $3,120 $13,200 $18,018 $11,550 $525 $59,273

Total $18,018 $11,550 $525 $59,273

Notes:

1)  Subconsultant fees include an 5% markup

Labor

F&L Staff

$29,180

FREYER & LAURETA, INC.
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Additional information or topics may be introduced by the DM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager  
 

Subject: District Manager’s Report  

1. CIP Project:   

a) Belle Haven III CIP construction began July 23.  Currently performing pipe-bursting to replace 
some segments of sewer main.  50% complete. 

2. Affiliate Agency/Association News:  
a) SLAC:  District Staff and Consultant have arranged a phone call on December 14, and a tentative 

meeting on January 24 to discuss implementation plan for meeting the BMP of the Mandatory 
Wastewater Discharge Permit Amended November 15, 2018.  

b) CASA:  Collection System Working Group continuing to meet with the State Water Resources 
Control Board to incorporated CASA comments into the General Wastewater Discharge Permit 
that all wastewater agencies operate under for controlling and reporting SSO’s.  The District will 
continue to be involved and provide an update at the Board meeting once a draft WDR is ready. 

3. Upcoming Events:  
a) Board meetings: December 12.  Election of Board Officers and Appointments. January 9, 2019. 

4) Misc./Action Items from Previous Meeting: 

a) SSOs:  Zero SSO for November.  Total 4 = 2018 
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Additional information or topics may be introduced by the DM verbally during the Board meeting. 
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1902 - Serving Our Community for over 110 Years - 2018 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2018 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
President Moritz called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Moritz, Dehn, Thiele-Sardiña, Walker, Otte  
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Condotti, Kitajima, Werness, Scott (electronically) 

 Others Present:   Chris Buja, Teresa Herrera, Matt Anderson, Robert Por, EJ  
      Shalaby,  Machelle Vieux, April Giangerelli 
 

2.  Communications from the Public:  None 
 
 

4. Discussion on District Reimbursement Agreement Procedures 

Comments:  Operations Manager (OM) Ramirez outlined the procedures for reimbursement 
agreements which included a discussion on how they are paid out. Reimbursees are not 
entitled to reimbursement agreement fees until the connections are made thus fees are paid to 
Reimbursees within a reasonable timeframe in the next quarter after the Class 1 or 2 permit 
isapplied for and connection made. However, District staff often had a difficult time collecting 
this fee, putting the District in an unfavorable position, as the District is obligated to pay the 
parties per the agreement. Additionally, the potential of a new connector backing out of a 
project before completion, could put the District in a position of needing to collect the 
reimbursement amounts back from Reimbursees in order to refund the connector that backed 
out.  New procedures were implemented to collect reimbursement agreement fees at the 
beginning of the process when the initial project application is submitted but reimbursement 
agreement fees would not be distributed until the actual sewer connection was made.  
 
Resident Chris Buja asked the Board to address a short term solution that would have the 
District take over the agreement to aid property owners.  
 
President Moritz directed District Counsel Condotti to research with staff about requiring 
payments made by new property owners binding and non refundable, in order to speed up 
payments to reimbursees who have paid into the agreement.   DM Scott pointed out that 
District staff receives and processes reimbursement payments at no charge to the property 
owners, although it does take up considerable staff time.  He also noted that the new policy 
requires a new homeowner or developer to pay upfront, before connecting, where as the old 
policy required all reimbursees to wait until after construction but reimburses are still not 
entitled to payment until the connection occurs.  
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3. Silicon Valley Clean Water FY 2018-19 Budget & CIP Presentation and Discussion 
 

Comments:  Teresa Herrera of SVCW gave an update the budget and Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP).  She outlined $290M has been spend to date on CIP with $560M remaining to 
be spend for a total of $850M.  A majority of treatment plant projects have been completed.   
Of the remaining $560M in CIP costs the District’s responsibility is $150M with the next District 
bond payment due in May/June 2019 for $13M.   DM Scott discussed the use of $6M from the 
rate stabilization fund to pay part of the $13M and using the SVCW line of credit, District 
financing or a reserve fund for the remaining amount.  
 

 
11. Discussion and Direction on Recycled Water Projects - Sharon Heights & Bayfront,  
  Including Project Status  
 

Comments:  OM Ramirez reported that the Caltrans permit is pending and is now under legal 
review.  City of Menlo Park has approved the encroachment permit.  District has received two 
State reimbursements for the Sharon Heights project and another for $2.5M is pending.  Grant 
applications have been submitted for the Bayfront Recycled Water project.  
 
Machelle Vieux of SLAC addressed the Board regarding the status of construction for the 
Sharon Heights project and would like to discuss their permit.  DM Scott outlined the status of 
construction and presented video of the project. DM Scott reported the District has been 
working with SLAC for the past two years on an amendment of their industrial wastewater 
discharge permit and came to an agreement on the Best Management Practice to be used.  
Machelle Vieux reported that one holding tank has been constructed and is requesting data 
that will help future options and determine if additional holding tanks are necessary to reduce 
Total Dissolved Solids  and Electrical Conductivity for water quality for the recycled water 
treatment plant.  DM Scott stated that the data has been presented to SLAC in the past and 
the District has created a process that would give SLAC flexibility with their permit.   Board 
consensus was to have Dave Richardson of Woodard & Curran following up with Ms. Vieux  to 
discuss her concerns.   
 

5. Consent Calendar  
   

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting October 10, 2018  
 

B. Approval of the Withdrawal Order Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills 
  and Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters for November 14, 2018 
 

C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – October 2018  
 

D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by  
  WBSD – October 2018  
 

E. Consider to Ratify and Approve Report on District’s Investment Portfolio Including the  
 Transactions of Assets Described Therein as of 10/31/18 
  

Motion by: Dehn     2nd  by: Sardiña  Vote:    AYE: 5 NAY:  0 Abstain: 0 
 

CONSIDERATION OF ITEM(S) REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Comments:  None 
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6. Consideration of Awarding Bid for the New Metal Storage Building Project to Aztec 

Consultants, Inc. 
 

Motion by: Walker     2nd  by: Sardiña  Vote:    AYE: 5 NAY:  0 Abstain: 0 

 

Comments:  Treasurer Sardiña asked how long the bids are good.  PIM Kitajima responded 
that bids are good for 60 days.   

 
7. Consideration of Awarding Bid for the Alpine Road Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project to 

Ranger Pipelines, Inc.   
 

Motion by: Dehn     2nd  by: Otte  Vote:    AYE: 5  NAY: 0  Abstain: 0 
 

Comments:  None 

 

8. Report & Discussion on Commuter Benefits Program 
 

Comments:  OS Ramirez presented the report which shows a total of 14 employees 
participating, 10 net vehicles removed from the road and 3 District vehicles being used.  Board 
consensus was to continue the program.  

 
9. District Manager’s Report 

 

Comments:   

1.  CIP Project:   

a) Belle Haven III CIP construction began July 23.  Currently performing pipe-bursting to replace 
some segments of sewer main.  20% complete. 

2. Affiliate Agency/Association News:  
a) County:  District Staff, District Counsel, County Staff and LAFCo are all reviewing a draft 

Lafco application, Resolutions and MOUs for transferring the Solid Waste Franchise to the 
County.  The County has indicated their preference for assignment of the franchise to be 
effective January 1, 2020 and will need through September to review and comment on the 
documents.  

b) CASA:  Collection System Working Group continuing to meet with the State Water Resources 
Control Board to incorporated CASA comments into the General Wastewater Discharge Permit 
that all wastewater agencies operate under for controlling and reporting SSO’s.  The District 
will continue to be involved and provide an update at the Board meeting once a draft WDR is 
ready. 

 

3. Upcoming Events:  
a) Board meetings: December 12.  Election of Board Officers and Appointments. 

b) Thanksgiving and PMP Luncheon: Noon November 15. 

c) Holiday Luncheon:   December 6, Holiday Luncheon at Black Pepper – 11:30am. 

4) Misc./Action Items from Previous Meeting: 

a) SSOs:  Zero SSO for November.  Total 4 = 2018 
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10. Consideration to Approve First Quarter Internal Financial Statements & Analysis of 
Financial Position as of Quarter End September 30, 2018 

 
Motion by: Dehn     2nd  by: Walker  Vote:    AYE: 5 NAY:  0 Abstain: 0 
 

Comments:  OS Ramirez reported on three highlights which include:  1) The Rate Stabilization 
fund has been funded; 2) Fully funded 5 months of operating reserve; 3) Paid semi-annual 
bond payments.  Board Member Dehn mentioned Accountant Liz Bahrami has done another 
good job with the Quarterly Report.  

 
12. Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA)   

 
Comments:  Director Dehn reported 3 important Requests for Proposals (RFPs) for 
Disposal/Landfill, Administrative Services and joint Legislative services. She further reported 
on the Organics-2-Energy (O2E) pilot to enhance the existing collection programs. The pilot 
costs is $5M.  $3M of that amount is available from Cal Recycle Grants.  The full scale cost for 
such project is estimated to be $15-20M and would be eligible for further grant opportunities.  

 
13. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on  
 SVCW CIP Program and Financing  

 
Comments:  Director Otte stated there is no report since it was covered during the SVCW 
presentation in Item 3.  

 
14. Closed Session  
 

A.         CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

(Pursuant to Cal. Govt. Code §54957.6)Agency designated representatives: District Manager 
& Legal Counsel  
Employee Organization: Unrepresented Employees & Teamsters Local 350 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Cal. Govt. Code §54956.9(d)) 
Name of Case:  1740 Oak Avenue, LP v. West Bay Sanitary District, et al. – SMCSC 
Case No. 18CIV02183 

 
C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIM 

(Pursuant to Cal. Govt. Code Section 54956.9) 
Claimants:  Alberto Patino & Arthur Hildebrand 

 
Entered closed session at 9:01p.m.  Left closed session at 9:50 p.m. 

  
 Reportable action: None. 
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15. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  
 Placed on Future Agenda 
 
       Comments: Follow up discussion on reimbursement agreement procedures.  An update from  

Staff on District’s Reserve funds to address payment to SVCW of the $13M in May/June 2019.  
    

 16. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:52 PM 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 8C 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Sergio Ramirez, Operations Superintendent 

Subject: WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – November 2018  

 

  

Basin 

PM 

Pipe  

Clean-

ing 

High 

Freq. 

PM 

Pipe 

Clean-

ing 

Un-

Sche. 

Pipe 

Clean-

ing 

WBSD 

CCTV 

Insp. 

Pipe 

Patch 

Repairs 

Open 

Trench 

Repairs 

Pump 

Sta. 

PM 

Pump 

Sta. 

Unsch. 

Repairs 

SSO SSO  Service Calls-  Unit 208 

            

 

    Cat. 
1 

Cat. 
2&3s 

Call Sch Unsch.  USA's 

Month 
Miles Miles Miles Miles 

Qty. Qty. Qty. Qty. Outs PM PM   

                  
 

      

 

  

January 5.2 4.2 0.7 2.2 0 5 121 1 0 0 126 6 6 231 

                              

   3.6 7.7 0.2 2.4 1 7 106 0 0 1 84 7 27 273 

                              

March 13.9 0.3 0.5 4.1 9 5 114 1 0 0 97 7 21 318 

                              

April 14.3 4.3 0.3 2.6 7 7 105 0 0 1 88 5 23 357 

                              

May 13.6 9.2 0.7 5.9 8 5 90 1 0 1 76 3 3 303 

                              

June 11.9 0.0 0.2 7.9 3 1 110 1 0 0 77 3 0 139 

                              

July 14.4 5.6 1.0 3.9 5 5 112 1 0 0 81 8 0 93 

                              

August 20.4 4.0 1.0 3.9 10 5 62 0 0 0 97 7 0 172 

                              

Sept.  11.1 0.0 0.9 2.3 15 8 104 0 0 1 101 8 0 109 

                              

* Oct.  14.9 4.1 0.8 2.9 3 4 120 0 0 0 109 55 1 237 

                              

Nov. 6.1 4.7 0.2 2.1 2 7 106 0 0 0 97 25 0 144 

                              

Dec                             

Yr to date 129.4 44.1 6.5 40.2 63 59 1150 5 0 4 1033 134 81 2376 
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2018 

Goals 120.0 51.0 n/a  

45-

50 65 90 n/a <10 0-2 
4 to 

6 n/a n/a n/a n/a 
2017 

Results 126.4 51.5 5.7 24.8 66 97 1265 8 2 3 700 178 61 3218 
2016 

Results 138 49 6 33 65 94 1188 5 0 8 798 167 155 3222 

2015Results 120 55 21 46 65 90 1349 6 0 5 798 174 185 2125 

2014Results 137 63 20 48 65 78 1328 10 2 12 771 183 72 1834 

2013Results 85 90 n/a  50.1 65 78 1281 105 0 10 802 285 95 1103 

2012Results 75 90 20 49 63 76 1221 186 1 11 727 212 92 867 

2011Results 74 104 32 45 47 73 472 184 0 16 777 318 151 1469 

 

 

 

* = Beginning of PMPP year. 

** Note: West Bay CCTV inspected an additional 10.8 miles for the Town of Los Altos Hills and 1 mile for 
the Town of Woodside. 
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WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 8D 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, Operations Superintendent 

 

Subject: Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work 

Performed by WBSD – November 2018 

 

  

Basin 

PM 

Pipe  

Clean-

ing 

High 

Freq. 

PM 

Pipe 

Clean-

ing 

Un-

Sche. 

Pipe 

Clean-

ing 

WBSD 

CCTV 

Insp. 

Pump 

Sta. 

PM 

Pump 

Sta. 

Unsch. 

Repairs 

SSO SSO  Service 

Calls 

Month             Cat. 
1 

Cat. 
2&3s 

Call 

Temp Help 
Miles Miles Miles Miles 

Qty. Qty. Outs 

              
 

    

January                   

                    

February                   

                    

March                   

                    

April                   

                    

May                   

                    

June                   

                    

July                   

                    

*August  0.0 0.5 0.0 0.8 4 0 0 0 0 

                    

Sept.  0.0 3.8 0.0 1.3 4 0 0 0 0 

                    

Oct.  1.4 1.3 0.0 1.2 4 1 0 0 0 

                    

Nov. 0.5 1.2 0.0 1.0 4 1 0 0 0 

                    

Dec                   

Yr to date 1.9 6.8 0.0 4.3 16 2 0 0 0 

  

FY17/18Goals 13.1 16.9 n/a 9.3 52 n/a n/a n/a n/a  

 

* Agreement commenced: FY Aug 1 through July 31. 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 8E 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 Liz Bahrami, District Accountant 

 

Subject: Consider to Ratify and Approve Report on District’s Investment 

Portfolio Including the Transactions of Assets Described 

Therein as of 11/30/18  

 

Background 

On October 27, 2010 the District named Bank of the West as the District’s Investment 
advisor and approved to invest $5 million in available funds according to the model 
portfolio.  
 
At the October 15, 2014 Board meeting the Directors discussed the District’s reserve 
funds and directed the DM to use recent unbudgeted connection fee revenues to fund 
District reserves as close to the predetermined target levels as the revenues would 
allow.  As a result, the DM transferred $3M from the Money Market account on October 
29, 2014 to the Investment Management Fund. 
 
At the November 19, 2014 Board meeting the Directors discussed the District’s 
reserves and further directed the DM to apply another set of unbudgeted connection 
fees to the reserves in an attempt to move even closer to the reserve target levels.  In 
addition, since BOW had recently notified the District that the Money Market interest 
rate would be failing to match the LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund) rate, the Board 
directed the DM to move the Operating Reserves to the Investment Management Fund.  
The District’s Operating Fund – equivalent to 5 months operating expense – is designed 
to bridge the cash flow gap between tax roll receipts from the County from July to 
December of each year. The Board consensus was to fully fund the reserves at target 
levels.  The Operating Reserves change each year as the budget changes and the 
target level was set as budgeted for the end of FY18-19.  During March an additional 
reserve was established to set aside funds received from Sharon Heights Golf and 
Country Club for the required Recycled Water SRF Reserve. 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

The District’s reserve funds were set as follows: 
 
      Target            Mkt Value         
District Reserves Balance         Balance     
Emergency Capital Reserve  = $5.0M            $5.36M             
Capital Project Reserve  = $3.5M  $3.67M 
             
Recycled Water Cash Flow: = $8.0M $8.13M 
             BoW RW CF Reserve  $1.33M 
             RW CF Reserve funds transferred to LAIF               $6.80M  
   
Operating Reserves (5 mo’s Op Exp)  = $9.4M $9.44M 
Rate Stabilization Reserve = $6.5M     $6.62M    
Recycled Water SRF Reserve (SHGCC) = $806.2K $ 817K 
 
                        Total Reserves market value at 11/30/2018 ≈$34.04M 

 
Analysis  

The District Accountant has attached a copy of the latest monthly Investment 
Management portfolio statements showing income activity and market valuations as of 
the end of the month for the six Reserve accounts.  Since January through the end of 
November, maturing investments in the Recycled Water Cash Flow Reserve totaling 
$6,802,149 have been withdrawn and deposited into LAIF to provide needed capital to 
fund the near term cash flow needs of the Recycled Water Facility project and still 
maintain interest earnings on these funds while waiting disbursement.  Recycled Water 
project spending to date totals $4,910,087 of which the District has received SRF 
reimbursement of $1,230,706 leaving a balance of $3,122,768 of the reserve funds in 
LAIF as of 11/30/2018.  In August $1M was added to the Rate Stabilization Reserve as 
provided for in the approved Budget and $1.43M was added to the Operating Reserve 
to increase its balance to equal 5 months of operating expenses.   

Fiscal Impact  

The investment portfolios have been set up with the goal to yield a rate of return of 
approximately 2%.  Based on the performance as measured by the month end market 
values, the yields have been trending toward this goal. The average yield in the 
District’s LAIF account during November was 2.21%.    

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the District Board ratify and approve the report on 
the District’s Investment Portfolio including the transactions of assets described therein 
as of 11/30/18. 

Attachments:  Investment Management Account Reports and YTD Summary as of November 
30, 2018; LAIF Performance Report for November 2018; PARS Statement as of 10/31/18.  
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 Liz Bahrami, District Accountant 

 

Subject: Consideration of Adopting the District’s Audited Financial 

Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 
Background 

The final draft of the audited Financial Statements prepared by Chavan & Associates, 
LLP is attached.  The Finance Advisory Group met and discussed results and details of 
the draft audit on December 3, 2018. 
 
Analysis  

The result of the audit, as stated in the report, indicated there were no deficiencies 
identified in internal control over financial reporting that were considered to be material 
weaknesses. 

 

Fiscal Impact  

None 

 

Recommendation 

The District Manager and the District Accountant recommend the District Board adopt 
the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
West Bay Sanitary District
Menlo Park, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the West Bay Sanitary District (the 
“District"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller's 
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the West Bay Sanitary District, as of June 30, 2018, and the 
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respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Other Matters 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District adopted new accounting guidance,
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions (OPEB). The District currently funds this obligation on a pay-as-you go 
basis and through contributions to a trust. The District anticipates that its ongoing funding and 
current resources are sufficient to meet its obligations as they come due.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of pension contributions - CalPERS, schedule of 
proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedule of OPEB contributions, and schedule of 
changes in net OPEB liability, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s financial statements as a whole. The supplementary 
information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the financial statements. These schedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. This information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 7, 2018 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
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and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

November 7, 2018
San Jose, California
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West Bay Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2018

The West Bay Sanitary District (the District) has issued its financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018, in conformity with the format prescribed by the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards.  The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is an overview of the District’s financial 
activities for the fiscal year and is an integral part of the accompanying Basic Financial Statements.
Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented herein with those statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The District’s net position increased by $7,088,946 or 7%.
The District’s operating revenue increased by $1,867,834 or 7.3%.
The District’s operating expenses increased by $1,787,881 or 9.5%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report includes the Management's discussion and analysis report, the independent auditor’s
report and the basic financial statements of the District.  The financial statements also include notes that 
explain the information in the financial statements in more detail. 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District’s accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short-term and long-term 
financial information about its activities.  The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s 
assets, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, and liabilities and provides information about the nature and 
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and obligations to creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the 
basis for evaluating the capital structure of the District.

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities and 
Changes in Net Position.  These statements reflect the result of the District’s operations over the past 
year.

The final required Financial Statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this 
statement is to provide information about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the 
reporting period.  The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting 
from operations and investments.  It also provides answers to questions such as where did cash come 
from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities and Changes in Net Position report information about the District’s activities in a way that will 
help answer this question.  These two statements report the net position of the District and changes in 
them.  You can think of the District’s net position – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one 
way to measure the financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, 
population growth, and new or changed government legislation.
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West Bay Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2018

NET POSITION

To begin our analysis, a summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position is presented in Table 1.

Dollar Percent
2018 2017 Change Change

Assets
Current & Other Assets 67,570,964$   60,289,418$  7,281,546$  12.1%
Capital Assets 51,930,419 48,382,995 3,547,424    7.3%
Total Assets 119,501,383$ 108,672,413$ 10,828,970$ 10.0%

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,503,608$    1,083,877$    419,731$     38.7%

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 6,230,166$    3,624,254$    2,605,912$  71.9%
Noncurrent Liabilities 6,248,926 4,507,639 1,741,287    38.6%
Total Liabilities 12,479,092$   8,131,893$    4,347,199$  53.5%

Deferred Inflows of Resources 221,220$       408,664$       (187,444)$    -45.9%
  

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 50,985,451$   48,382,995$  2,602,456$  5.4%
Unrestricted:

Capital fund budget 17,546,817    14,531,267    3,015,550    20.8%
Invested in SVCW 13,033,198 13,589,774    (556,576)     -4.1%
Operations reserve 8,131,426      7,923,244      208,182       2.6%
Unreserved 18,607,787    16,788,453    1,819,334    10.8%

Total Net Position 108,304,679$ 101,215,733$ 7,088,946$  7.0%

Table 1 - Summary of Net Position

As seen above, the District’s total net position increased by $7,088,946, or 7%, from fiscal year 2016-17
to 2017-18. The District’s current and other assets increased by $7,281,546. Capital assets, net of 
depreciation, increased by $3,547,424 from capital spending totaling $5,420,789.  This includes Capital 
expenditures of $3,424,703 for capital equipment purchases and replacement of sewer infrastructure, 
expenditures of $1,762,271 for the SHGCC Recycled Water Facility and $233,815 for the Bay Front 
Resource Recovery project. Total liabilities increased by $4,347,199 primarily due to increases to the 
District’s net pension obligation of $691,869, state revolving fund loan disbursements of $987,014 and 
accounts payable of $2,572,666.
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West Bay Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2018

Table 2 below summarizes the District’s changes in net position for the year.

Dollar Percent
2018 2017 Change Change

Revenues
Operating Revenue 27,444,719$   25,576,885$  1,867,834$   7.3%

Operating Expenses
Sewage treatment 12,177,636    10,294,299    1,883,337     18.3%
Sewage collection and general administration 6,648,196      6,960,005     (311,809)      -4.5%
Depreciation 1,868,991      1,652,638     216,353        13.1%

Total Operating Expenses 20,694,823    18,906,942    1,787,881     9.5%
Operating Income (Loss) 6,749,896      6,669,943     79,953         1.2%
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 455,289         696,962        (241,673)      -34.7%
Increase (decrease) of equity in SVCW (556,576)        328,526        (885,102)      -269.4%
Connection Fees 570,181         1,912,132     (1,341,951)    -70.2%
Change in Net Position Current 7,218,790      9,607,563     (2,388,773)    -24.9%
Prior Period Adjustments to Beginning Net Position (129,844)        -               (129,844)      -100.0%
Total Change in Net Position 7,088,946$    9,607,563$    (2,518,617)$  -26.2%

Table 2 - Change in Net Position

The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position (Table2) provides answers as to the nature and 
sources of the changes shown in Table 1.  The net position increase of $7,088,946 in Table 1 was the 
result of an increase in operating revenues, connection fees, and operating expenses. Operating revenues 
increased by $1,867,834 (7.3%) resulting primarily from the 4.5% service fee rate increase as well as 
increased number of residential accounts within the District resulting from a number of multifamily 
developments that came online during the year.  Connection fees decreased $1,341,951 from the prior 
year as a result of new connection fees returning to more normal levels following the unusually high 
volume of new connections that originated in the prior year.  

Total operating expenses, which include sewage treatment, collection, general administration, and 
depreciation, increased $1,787,881 (9.5%) over the prior year.  The most significant impact in operating 
expenses came from sewage treatment costs totaling $12,177,636.  Sewage treatment is provided by 
Silicon Valley Clean Water, formerly South Bayside System Authority, which was created in 1975 under 
a Joint exercise of Powers Agreement to construct and operate a sewage treatment facility at Redwood 
Shores for the District and the cities of Belmont, San Carlos, and Redwood City.  As a member of the 
JPA the District is liable for its share of SVCW operating expenses.  For the year ending June 30, 2018, 
the District’s share was approximately 15.78% which resulted in a 18.3% increase in expenses over the 
prior year.  This was primarily due to the new SVCW debt that was issued during the year. Going 
forward it is anticipated that SVCW related sewage treatment expenses will rise substantially as their debt 
increases, whereas sewage collection and general administration expenses are expected to remain stable 
and generally reflect CPI increases.   

A prior period adjustment of $129,844 was made to Beginning Net Position.  This represents required 
adjustments to prior years to report the net OPEB liability resulting from implementation of GASB 75 in
FY2017-18.    
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West Bay Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2018

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District adopts an annual budget which provides for the general operations.  Budgets are prepared on 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Project-length financial plans are adopted for capital projects. The 
Capital Improvement Program provides an annual forecast of capital requirements. Table 3 shows a 
comparison of actual to budget for general operations for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Percent
Budget Actual Variance Variance

Revenues
Operating Revenue 26,247,032$ 27,444,719$ 1,197,687$  4.6%

Operating Expenses
Sewage treatment 12,296,950  12,177,636  119,314       1.0%
Sewage collection and general administration 7,128,473    6,648,196    480,277       7.2%
Depreciation 1,800,000    1,868,991    (68,991)       -3.7%

Total Operating Expenses 21,225,423  20,694,823  530,600       2.6%
Operating Income (Loss) 5,021,609    6,749,896    1,728,287    34.4%
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 101,000       455,289       354,289       77.8%
Increase (Decrease) of Equity in SVCW -              (556,576)      (556,576)      -100.0%
Connection Fees 500,000       570,181       70,181         12.3%
Change in Net Position 5,622,609$  7,218,790$  1,596,181$  28.4%

Table 3 - Budget Summary

The District reported $1,197,687 more in operating revenue than budgeted primarily resulting from higher 
sewer service fees collected. Total operating expenses were $530,600 less than budgeted and resulted 
from favorable variances from a combination of various operating and nonoperating expenses.

Table 4 summarizes the capital budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:

Budget Actual Variance
Percent 
Variance

Transfer from Operations 6,847,609$     9,060,355$     2,212,746$    32%
Capital Expenditures (9,509,500)     (3,424,703)     6,084,797      178%
Recycled Water Facility SHGCC -                (1,762,271)     (1,762,271)     -100%
Bay Front Resource Recovery -                (233,815)        (233,815)        -100%
Connection Charges 500,000         570,181 70,181           14%
Interest Income 75,000           75,803 803               1%
Rate Stabilization Reserve -                (1,000,000)     (1,000,000)     -100%
Equipment Replacement Reserve (270,000)        (270,000)        -                0%
Change in capital Asset Fund (2,356,891)     3,015,550       5,372,441      178%
Beginning Fund Balance 15,470,817     14,531,267     (939,550)        -6%
Ending Fund Balance 13,113,926$   17,546,817$   4,432,891$    34%

Table 4 - Capital Fund Budget Summary

Capital Expenditures of $3,424,703 to acquire capital equipment and replace or rehabilitate sewer 
infrastructure were $6,084,797 less than budget.  District expenditures for the recycled water facility 
projects were $1,762,271 for the SHGCC Recycled Water Facility and $233,815 for the Bay Front 
Resource Recovery. The District also set-aside $270,000 for equipment replacements and added 
$1,000,000 to the Rate Stabilization Reserve. Due to the favorable variances in total revenue and total 
expense to budget, the District was able to transfer $9,060,355 into the capital asset fund at year end 
which contributed to an ending Capital Asset Fund balance of $17,546,817.
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West Bay Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Table 5 shows a summary of capital assets owned by the District as of June 30, 2018.

Dollar Percent
2018 2017 Change Change

Land 44,467$        44,467$       -$          0.00%
Construction in Progress 3,690,850     4,302,952    (612,102)    -14.23%
Pump stations 5,475,603     5,600,218    (124,615)    -2.23%
Fleet 882,219        894,948       (12,729)      -1.42%
Plant and administration facilities 400,761        373,766       26,995       7.22%
Buildings 1,797,458     1,881,760    (84,302)      -4.48%
Flow equalization facilities 474,527        547,681       (73,154)      -13.36%
Subsurface lines 39,164,534   34,737,203  4,427,331  12.75%
Net Capital Assets 51,930,419$  48,382,995$ 3,547,424$ 7.33%

Table 5 - Summary of Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The District is governed in part by provisions of the California Constitution that require the District to set 
rates that cover only the costs of operation, maintenance and recurring capital replacement (OM&R). The 
District is not subject to general economic conditions such as increases or declines in property tax values 
or other types of revenues that vary with economic conditions. Accordingly, the District sets its rates to its 
users to cover the costs of OM&R plus any increments for known or anticipated changes in program 
costs.  As in previous years, the District has maintained operating costs by carefully managing every 
expense.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's Finances and demonstrate 
the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this, or any other 
matter related to the District, please contact the District at 500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 or 
(650) 321-0384.
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Assets 2018 2017
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 27,032,327$     20,181,203$      
Restricted cash and investments 807,350 -                    
Accounts receivable 368,390 184,381
Interest receivable 107,450 182,784
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 28,738 35,995

Total Current Assets 28,344,255       20,584,363        
Noncurrent Assets:

Investments 26,193,511 26,031,081
Net OPEB asset -                   84,200
Investment in Silicon Valley Clean Water 13,033,198 13,589,774
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 3,735,317 4,347,419
Depreciable net of accumulated depreciation 48,195,102 44,035,576

Total Capital Assets - Net 51,930,419       48,382,995        
Total Noncurrent Assets - Net 91,157,128       88,088,050        

Total Assets 119,501,383$   108,672,413$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources
OPEB adjustments 7,860 -$                  
Pension adjustments 1,495,748         1,083,877         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,503,608$       1,083,877$        

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,011,904$       3,439,238$        
Payroll and related liabilities 9,673 4,035
Construction deposits 8,672 9,381
Compensated absences payable - current 199,917            171,600

Total Current Liabilities 6,230,166         3,624,254         
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Net OPEB liability 58,399 -                    
Net pension obligation 5,120,961         4,429,092
State Revolving Fund Loan 987,014            -                    
Compensated absences payable - noncurrent 82,552 78,547

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,248,926         4,507,639         
Total Liabilities 12,479,092$     8,131,893$        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB adjustments 8,187$              -$                  
Pension adjustments 213,033            408,664            

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 221,220$          408,664$          

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 50,943,405$     48,382,995$      
Unrestricted:

Capital fund budget 17,546,817       14,531,267        
Invested in Silicon Valley Clean Water 13,033,198       13,589,774        
Operations reserve 8,131,426         7,923,244         
Unreserved 18,649,833       16,788,453        

Total Net Position 108,304,679$   101,215,733$    

West Bay Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2017)
June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2018 2017
Operating Revenues:

Service charges 26,391,698$     24,483,213$      
Flow equalization uses 327,574 315,186
Permit and inspection fees and other services 293,578 210,870
Other operating revenues 431,869 567,616

Total operating revenues 27,444,719       25,576,885        

Operating Expenses:
Sewage treatment 12,177,636 10,294,299
Sewage collection and general administration:

Salaries and benefits 4,773,639 5,231,091
Materials and supplies 416,494 335,092
Insurance 98,655 84,360
Contract services 357,048 283,662
Professional services 371,582 383,741
Repairs and maintenance 219,895 255,891
Utilities 149,927 129,147
Other operating expenses 260,956 257,021

Total sewage collection and general administration 6,648,196         6,960,005          
Depreciation 1,868,991 1,652,638

Total operating expenses 20,694,823       18,906,942        
Operating Income (Loss) 6,749,896         6,669,943          

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income 288,205            168,839
Increase (decrease) of equity in Silicon Valley Clean Water (556,576)           328,526             
Other nonoperating revenues 167,084 528,123             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (101,287)           1,025,488          

Income before contributions 6,648,609         7,695,431          

Capital contributions - connection fees 570,181 1,912,132

Change in Net Position 7,218,790         9,607,563          

Beginning Net Position 101,215,733     91,608,170        
Prior Period Adjustment - GASB 75 (129,844)           -                     
Beginning Net Position - As Adjusted 101,085,889     91,608,170        

Ending Net Position 108,304,679$   101,215,733$    

West Bay Sanitary District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2018 2017
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers 27,430,745$      26,954,229$    
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (11,471,943)      (11,038,524)     
Cash payments to employees for services (3,260,154)        (3,186,464)       
Cash payments of benefits on behalf of employees (1,248,559)        (1,619,838)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 11,450,089        11,109,403      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Cash received from connection fees 570,181             1,912,132        
Cash received from the State Revolving Fund loan 987,014             -                  
Cash received on the sale of capital assets -                    8,213               
Purchases and construction of capital assets (5,416,415)        (5,600,818)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (3,859,220)        (3,680,473)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Transfers to investment accounts (4,291,258)        (7,797,300)       
Transfers from investment accounts 3,538,849          -                  
Investment income 12,664               106,605           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (739,745)           (7,690,695)       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,851,124          (261,765)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning 20,181,203        20,442,968      

Cash and Cash Equivalents Ending 27,032,327$      20,181,203$    

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Flows Provided
by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) 6,749,896$        6,669,943$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,868,991          1,652,638        
Net change in:

Accounts receivable (13,265)             1,377,344        
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,257                 (3,815)              
Deposits (709)                  -                  
Net OPEB asset 84,200               (84,200)            
Deferred outflows of resources (419,731)           (310,288)          
Accounts payable 2,572,666          988,504           
Payroll and related liabilities 5,638                 (5,227)              
Net OPEB liability 58,399               (119,049)          
Net pension obligation 691,869             904,101           
Deferred inflows of resources (187,444)           72,216             
Compensated absences 32,322               (32,764)            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 11,450,089$      11,109,403$    

West Bay Sanitary District
Statement of Cash Flows

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

West Bay Sanitary District (District) is a political subdivision of the State of California, and was 
formed for the purpose of protecting water quality and the associated public health. The District is 
responsible for wastewater collections, treatment, reclamation and disposal. The District performs the 
services of wastewater collection, and together with three other public entities is part of a Joint 
Powers District for the treatment, disposal and reclamation of wastewater. The District is also 
responsible for refuse (solid waste) collection, treatment, disposal and reclamation. It franchises with 
other organizations to perform these refuse services. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The District's Basic Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the policies and procedures 
for California special districts.  The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board and Audits of State and Local Governmental Units, issued by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

The District is accounted for as an enterprise fund because the intent of the governing body is that the 
cost (including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector, where the 
proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the full accrual basis of accounting is 
required. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources of the enterprise are recorded on its statement of net position, and under 
the full accrual basis of accounting, all revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses, 
including depreciation, are recognized when incurred. 

Enterprise funds are accounted for on a cost of services or economic resources measurement focus, 
which means that all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Enterprise fund type 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net assets by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period. For example, prepaid items and deferred charges.  Deferred inflows of 
resources is an acquisition of net assets by the District that is applicable to a future reporting period. 
For example, unearned revenue and advance collections.

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been 
satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as 
deferred inflows from unearned revenue. 

The District applies all applicable GASB pronouncements for certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance. In December of 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of 
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West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and 
AICPA Pronouncements. GASB 62 incorporates pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989 into GASB authoritative literature. In June of 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The 
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.  GASB 76 
supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments. GASB 76 also amends GASB 62 and AICPA Pronouncements paragraphs 
64, 74, and 82.  The GAAP hierarchy sets forth what constitutes GAAP for all state and local 
governmental entities. It establishes the order of priority of pronouncements and other sources of 
accounting and financial reporting guidance that a governmental entity should apply. The sources of 
authoritative GAAP are categorized in descending order of authority as follows:

a. Officially established accounting principles—Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statements (Category A)

b. GASB Technical Bulletins; GASB Implementation Guides; and literature of the AICPA 
cleared by the GASB (Category B).

If the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified by a pronouncement in 
Category A, a governmental entity should consider whether the accounting treatment is specified by 
a source in Category B.

Statement of Net Position

The statement of net position is designed to display the financial position of the District. The 
District’s net position are classified into three categories as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  Deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position, 
as applicable.

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on an assets use 
through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors, or law and regulations of other governments, and reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources related to those assets.  It also pertains to constraints imposed by law or 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation

Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of the net amount of the assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. The 
District first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
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West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is the operating statement for 
proprietary funds. This statement distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and 
expenses and presents a separate subtotal for operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating 
income.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection 
with the District's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are 
charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the District include the cost of services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Service Charges 

Service charges are billed and collected on the District's behalf by the County of San Mateo in 
conjunction with the County's annual property tax billings. The majority of revenues are collected 
through the County system with only small amounts billed directly by the District. 

Connection Fees 

Connection fees are reported as revenue only to the extent the amount equals the costs of the physical 
connection to the system. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted by the Board of Directors. Project-length financial plans are 
adopted for all capital projects funds. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash represents balances that can be readily 
withdrawn without substantial notice or penalty. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their 
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, 
and have an original maturity date of three months or less. 

Investments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of 
GASB No.3), certain disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the 
areas of interest rate risk and credit risk.  The credit risk disclosures include the following 
components; overall credit risk, custodial credit risk and concentrations of credit risk. In addition, 
other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and investments, 
highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

The District participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California known as the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pooled funds in 
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structured notes and asset-backed securities.  LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the 
full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments.  In addition, the 
structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest rates.

Investments are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application. Accordingly, the change in fair value of investments is recognized as 
an increase or decrease to investment assets and investment income. 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction. In determining this amount, three valuation techniques are available:

Market approach - This approach uses prices generated for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities. The most common example is an investment in a public security traded in an 
active exchange such as the NYSE.

Cost approach - This technique determines the amount required to replace the current asset. 
This approach may be ideal for valuing donations of capital assets or historical treasures.

Income approach - This approach converts future amounts (such as cash flows) into a current 
discounted amount.

Each of these valuation techniques requires inputs to calculate a fair value. Observable inputs have 
been maximized in fair value measures, and unobservable inputs have been minimized.

Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from collection services and other assessments or resources.  All 
receivables are current and reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts as applicable.  
The allowance for uncollectible accounts was zero as of June 30, 2018.

Capital Assets

Property, plant and equipment contributed to the District are stated at estimated fair value at the time 
of contribution. District policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at 
$5,000 if an asset has an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation is computed using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The purpose of depreciation is 
to spread the cost of plant and equipment equitably among all customers over the life of these assets, 
so that each customer's bill includes a pro rata share of the cost of these assets. The amount charged 
to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of plant and equipment cost.

Depreciation of all plant and equipment in service is charged as an expense against operations each 
year and the total amount of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is 
reported on the statement of net position as a reduction in the book value of the capital assets.
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The District has assigned the useful lives listed below to plant and equipment:

Pump Stations 5-30 years
Fleet 5-10 years
Plant and administration facilities 3-10 years
Buildings 10-30 years
Flow equalization facilities 10-30 years
Subsurface lines 10-50 years

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences include vacation leave. Vested or accumulated vacation leave is recorded as 
an expense and liability as the benefits accrue to the employees. 

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (the Plan) and 
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  

Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net 
position of the District’s Retiree Benefits Plan (the OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable 
in accordance with the benefit terms.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the date of the 
financial statements through the date the financial statements were issued. The financial statements 
include all events or transactions, including estimates, required to be recognized in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Management has determined that there are no non-
recognized subsequent events that require additional disclosure.

Page 18 of 49 9-21



West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Implemented New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions

The provisions in Statement 75 are effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  The primary 
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or 
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.  This Statement replaces the 
requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by 
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting 
and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided 
to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for 
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, 
and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and 
assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit 
payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee 
service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit 
OPEB also are addressed. 

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with 
payables to defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified 
criteria and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This 
Statement also addresses certain circumstances in which a nonemployer entity provides financial 
support for OPEB of employees of another entity. 

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon 
whether the OPEB plans through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that 
meet the following criteria: 

Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and 
earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.
OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the 
benefit terms.
OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer 
contributing entities, the OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members.

As of June 30, 2018, according to GASB 75, the District’s net OPEB liability must be recognized. 
Therefore, the previous net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 in the amount of $129,844 has been 
shown as a restatement of net position in the Statement of Activities as a separate line item.
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GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial 
reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash 
and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds 
of refunding debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This 
Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is 
extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 
15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement did not have an impact on the District’s 
financial statements.

Upcoming New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital 
asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to 
its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 
15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The District doesn’t believe this statement will have a 
significant impact on the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities

The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary 
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local 
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the 
assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. 
Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit 
arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is 
encouraged. The District doesn’t believe this statement will have a significant impact on the 
District’s financial statements.

GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases

The objective of this statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement increases the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a 
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the 
right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease 
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liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of 
information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of this statement are effective 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The District doesn’t believe this statement will have a 
significant impact on the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and 
Direct Placements

This Statement addresses additional information to be disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements regarding debt, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; 
and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related 
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant 
subjective acceleration clauses. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The District 
doesn’t believe this statement will have a significant impact on the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of the 
Construction Period

This Statement addresses interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period be 
recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of 
a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a 
business-type activity or enterprise fund. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is 
encouraged. The District doesn’t believe this statement will have a significant impact on the 
District’s financial statements.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District’s cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Fair Value 12 Months 13 - 60 Fair Value
Rating June 30, 2018 or Less Months June 30, 2017

Bank of the West Investments:
Fixed Income AA+/BBB 26,546,099$ 6,626,735$   19,919,364$ 49.13% 26,031,081$   
Cash N/A 454,762       454,762       -               0.84% 1,361,849      

Total Bank of West Investments AAA 27,000,861  7,081,497    19,919,364   49.97% 27,392,930     
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on hand and in banks N/A 2,211,661 2,211,661    -               4.09% 2,084,503      
Money Market N/A 334,863       334,863       -               0.62% 13,704,414     
LAIF N/A 24,485,203  24,485,203   -               45.32% 3,029,837      
Petty Cash N/A 600             600              -               0.00% 600                

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,032,327  27,032,327   -               50.03% 18,819,354     
Total Cash and Investments 54,033,188$ 34,113,824$ 19,919,364$ 100.00% 46,212,284$   

Description
Concen-
trations

Maturities
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Cash Deposits

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s cash deposits exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
("FDIC") insured limits by $2,093,533, but had little exposure since they were collateralized as noted 
in the Collateral and Categorization Requirements disclosure below.  Bank balances are insured up 
to $250,000 per bank by FDIC.  

Collateral and Categorization Requirements

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to 
secure an agency’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  The market value of 
pledged securities must equal at least 110% of an agency’s deposits.  California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure an agency’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes 
having a value of at least 150% of an agency’s total deposits.

Investment Policy

The District's investment guidelines as defined by its written investment policy were approved by the 
Board of Directors. Implementation and direction is established by an internal finance committee. 
Monthly, the Board ratifies the investments that have been made.

The District’s investment policy follows the California Government Code which authorizes the 
District to invest in the following: 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Total of Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity (1) Portfolio Anyone Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 20% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 2 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds 1 year 20% None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A None None
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Fair Value Measurements

Local Agency Investment Fund 

Risk Disclosures 

Interest Rate Risk - 

Credit Risk - 

Custodial Credit Risk - 
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held by a third party bank or trust department under the terms of a custody or trustee agreement. 
None of the District's investments were subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk - See the chart above for the District’s limitations on the amount 
that can be invested in any one issuer.  

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT IN SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER

Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), formerly the South Bayside System Authority, was created in 
1975, under a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, to construct and operate a sewage treatment 
facility at Redwood Shores for the District and the cities of Belmont, San Carlos, and Redwood City. 
At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District had approximately 15.78% equity interest in SVCW, which 
is reported using the equity method of accounting. The Districts investment in SVCW at June 30, 
2018 and 2017 was $13,033,198 and $13,589,774, respectively, as reflected on the statement of net 
position. The change in the investment for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was a increase of 
$556,576 and an increase of $328,526, respectively, as reflected in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position.  The 2018 changes in the District’s equity share was mostly
attributed to the fact that not all members share in the long-term debt, only the net position, or equity, 
of the participating members decreases upon the issuance of new debt, while the “non-debt” 
member’s net position increases.  In addition, the non-debt members contribute more cash into the 
JPA than other members to cover their share of capital improvements, which increases the equity 
share of non-debt members and decreases the share of other participating agencies.

SVCW's governing commission consists of four members, one appointed from each of the four 
participating agencies. SVCW’s condensed audited financial information is presented below for the 
year ended June 30, 2017, (most recent information available): 

June 30, 2017
Total Assets 304,774,429$   
Deferred Outflows of Resources 6,969,339         
Total Liabilities 225,872,024     
Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,832,072         
Total Equity 80,039,672       
Total Revenues 41,887,031       
Total Expenditures 41,011,248       
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT)

The District’s capital assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance
Description June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2018
Non-depreciable Capital Assets:
Land 44,467$            -$                -$          -$              44,467$            
Construction in progress 4,302,952         4,996,694        -            (5,608,796)    3,690,850         

Total non-depreciable capital assets 4,347,419         4,996,694        -            (5,608,796)    3,735,317         
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Pump stations 7,567,039         56,315             -            -               7,623,354         
Fleet 2,428,795         156,595           (14,309)      -               2,571,081         
Plant and administration facilities 1,600,942         91,334             (30,232)      -               1,662,044         
Buildings 2,981,893         8,100               -            -               2,989,993         
Flow equalization facilities 2,901,072         17,666             (34,019)      -               2,884,719         
Subsurface lines 52,695,818       89,710             -            5,608,796      58,394,324       

Total depreciable capital assets 70,175,559       419,720           (78,560)      5,608,796      76,125,515       
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Pump stations (1,966,821)        (180,930)          -            -               (2,147,751)        
Fleet (1,533,847)        (169,324)          14,309       -               (1,688,862)        
Plant and administration facilities (1,227,176)        (64,339)            30,232       -               (1,261,283)        
Buildings (1,100,133)        (92,402)            -            -               (1,192,535)        
Flow equalization facilities (2,353,391)        (90,820)            34,019       -               (2,410,192)        
Subsurface lines (17,958,615)      (1,271,175)       -            -               (19,229,790)      

Total accumulated depreciation (26,139,983)      (1,868,990)       78,560       -               (27,930,413)      
Total depreciable capital assets - net 44,035,576       (1,449,270)       -            5,608,796      48,195,102       
Total capital assets - net 48,382,995$     3,547,424$       -$          -$              51,930,419$     

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $1,868,991 and $1,652,638, 
respectively.

Construction in progress consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018:

Balance
Project June 30, 2018
Fair Oaks 10,598$        
Oak Grove 12,110         
Easement Design Projects 78,598         
FEF Metal Storage Building 51,416         
Belle Haven III 318,930        
Levee Design 19,819         
Emergency Repairs to Alpine Rd 26,050         
Emergency Repairs to Alpine Rd 1,667           
RMC Water and Enviroment - SHGCC 2,916,652     
Bay Front Resource Recovery 248,011        
Other projects 7,000           

Total Construction in Progress 3,690,850$   
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NOTE 6 - NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

The District’s noncurrent liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance Due Within
Description July 01, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 One Year
Net OPEB Liability -$               58,399$     -$            58,399$           -$              
Net Pension Obligation 4,429,092 691,869     -             5,120,961        -                
State Revolving Fund Loan -                 987,014     -             987,014           -                
Compensated Absences 250,147          32,322       282,469           199,917         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,679,239$     1,769,604$ -$            6,448,843$      199,917$       

State Revolving Fund Loan

The District has entered into a $22,595,000 agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB or State Revolving Fund Loan) to finance the Sharon Heights Recycled Water project. The 
funding will be disbursed through a grant of $5,259,800 and a loan of $17,335,200. The loan funds 
together with all accrued interest will be repaid in annual installments commencing one year after the 
completion of construction which was estimated to be August 14, 2020. The SWRCB reimbursed the 
Authority for project-related expenditures as incurred, and the outstanding liability was $987,017 as 
of June 30, 2018. The following summarized the total estimated debt service to be repaid by June 30, 
2050:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30: Principal Interest Total
2019 -$             -$               -$               
2020 -              -                 -                
2021 384,941       103,898          488,839         
2022 523,508       152,033          675,541         
2023 511,273       164,268          675,541         
2024-28 2,634,088     743,616          3,377,704       
2029-33 2,768,453     609,251          3,377,704       
2034-38 2,909,672     468,032          3,377,704       
2039-43 3,058,094     319,610          3,377,704       
2044-48 3,214,088     163,616          3,377,704       
2049-50 1,331,082     19,999           1,351,081       
Total Debt Service 17,335,199$ 2,744,323$     20,079,522$   
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NOTE 7 - BOARD COMMITMENTS OF NET POSITION

Commitments are imposed by the District’s Board to reflect future spending plans or concerns about 
the availability of future resources. Commitments may be modified, amended or removed by Board 
action.  Commitments for future capital assets replacement is the portion of net position to be used 
for new equipment and for emergency and scheduled replacement of capital facilities paid from 
connection fees. Commitments for operations have been set-aside to reserve approximately five 
months of operating expenses. The Board committed the following unrestricted net position as of 
June 30, 2018: 

Description Balance
Capital fund budget 17,546,817$     
Invested in Silicon Valley Clean Water 13,033,198
Operations 8,131,426        

Total Commited Net Unrestricted Position 38,711,441$     

NOTE 8 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

District employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a District-sponsored Deferred 
Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this Plan, 
participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to them; 
distributions may be made only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency defined by the 
Plan. 

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for 
the exclusive benefits of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these 
plans are not the District's property and are not subject to District control, they are not included in 
these financial statements. 

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District joined together with other sanitary districts in the State to form California Sanitation 
Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common 
risk management and. insurance program.  The District is insured for the costs of claims through 
CSRMA and commercial insurance carriers for the following: 

Type of Coverage Limits Deductibles
General Liability 15,500,000       25,000          
Employment Practices Liability 15,500,000       25,000          
Worker's Compensation 750,000           None
Excess Worker's Compensation Liability Statutory Limits None
Mobile Equipment 767,005           2,000            
Special Form Property 1,003,385         5,000            
Public Official Bond 100,000           None
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The District has not incurred a claim that has exceeded its insurance coverage limits in any of the last 
three years.

Audited condensed financial information for CSRMA is presented below for the year ended June 30, 
2017 (most recent information available):

June 30, 2018
Total Assets    28,419,707$     
Total Liabilities    17,241,037       
Total Equity    11,178,670       
Total Revenues    11,166,523       
Total Expenditures 11,588,811       

NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in 
the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (the Plan); cost-sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS).  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution.  
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension Plan 
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the 
CalPERS website. 

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of 
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and 
beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily 
reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of service for 
Tier 1 and 5 years of service for PEPRA.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living 
adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  The 
Plan’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Classic PEPRA
Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.250%
Employee contribution rates per MOU 10.101% 7.848%
Required employer contribution rates 17.282% 6.533%
Employer contribution rates per MOU 15.183% 6.533%

Miscellaneous
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Employees Covered - At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms 
for the Plan:

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that 
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding 
contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  
The actuarially determined rates are the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued 
liability.  The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate 
and the contribution rate of employees.  For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District’s 
contributions were $413,896.

During the fiscal year, the Classic employees contributed 10.101% and the PEPRA employees 
contributed 7.848% of their salary toward the combined required contribution of 25.282% for the 
Classic plan and 14.381% for PEPRA, leaving the District’s total contribution at 15.183% for the 
Classic plan and 6.533% for PEPRA in 2018.  Total contributions made by employees over the last 
three fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $267,442, $230,583 and $184,846, 
respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

As of June 30, 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net 
pension liability of $5,120,961. The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the 
proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability of the Plan are measured as 
of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using 
standard update procedures.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension Plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2018 was as 
follows: 

Miscellaneous
Active 27                      
Transferred 6                        
Separated 6                        
Retired 27                      

Total 66                      

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.12750%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.12991%
Change - Increase/(Decrease) 0.00241%
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For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $1,018,841. 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

The District reported $413,896 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2019. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Changes of Assumptions 713,129$        -$               
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience -                 82,919            
Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 174,593          -                 
Differences between Employer's Contributions and Proportionate 
Share of Contributions -                 130,114          
Change in Employer's Proportion 194,129          -                 
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date 413,896          -                 
Total 1,495,747$     213,033$        

269,498$        
437,634          
265,346          

(103,659)         
-                 
-                 

868,819$        
Thereafter
Total

Deferred 
Outflows/

(Inflows) of 
Resources

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30:
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent for 
the Plan.  To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a
discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount
rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of 
the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is adequate and
the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate 
of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The
stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the 
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using 
the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to
the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one 
percent.  

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal 

Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2)
Mortality (3)

(1)  Varies by age and service
(2)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3)  Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds
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The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return 
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 

Rate - The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the 
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (a) Years 11+ (b)

Global Equity 47.00% 4.90% 5.38%
Fixed Income 19.00% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.00% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.40% -0.90%
Total 100.00%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.15%
Net Pension Liability 7,665,676$     

Current 7.15%
Net Pension Liability 5,120,961$     

1% Increase 8.15%
Net Pension Liability 3,013,381$     
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NOTE 11 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The District's single employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan provides health care 
benefits to eligible retirees in accordance with a Board resolution. 

Benefits Provided

The District contributes toward post-retirement benefits for employees who retire under PERS after 
age 50 and choose coverage under CalPERS medical plans. The District pays the amount of the 
PEMHCA minimum contribution, which is $128 per month in 2017, $133 in 2018, and is expected to 
increase in future years. Payments are made for the lifetime of the retired employee and covered 
dependent spouse (or domestic partner), provided that they remain covered under CalPERS medical 
plans. Retirees are required to pay the balance of the monthly medical premiums. The District does 
not provide any other post-retirement health and welfare benefits.

The District contracts with CalPERS to administer its retiree health benefit plan. A menu of benefit 
provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statute within the Public Employees' 
Retirement Law.  The District chooses among the menu of benefit provisions and adopts certain 
benefit provisions by Board resolution.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2017 (the valuation date), the benefit terms covered the following employees: 

Contributions

The District makes contributions based on an actuarially determined rate and are approved by the 
authority of the District’s Board. Total contributions during the year were $7,860.  Total 
contributions included in the measurement period were $232,903.  The actuarially determined 
contribution for the measurement period was $7,860. The District’s contributions were .28% of 
payroll during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  Employees are not required to contribute to the 
plan.

Active employees 28             
Retired former employees 4               
Total employees 32             

Page 33 of 49 9-36



West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Actuarial Assumptions

The following summarized the actuarial assumptions for the OPEB plan included in this fiscal year:

Discount Rate

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District 
contribution will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on 
those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to cover all future OPEB 
payments. Therefore, the discount rate was set to be equal to the long-term expected rate of return 
which was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Amortization Period:
Asset Valuation Method:
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Increases
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality

Retirement

Service Requirement

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017

20 years

6.00%
2.75%

Entry-Age Normal

Level percentage of payroll, closed

6.75%
2014 CalPERS OPEB Assumptions Model 
for “public agency miscellaneous"
2014 CalPERS OPEB Assumptions Model 
for miscellaneous public employees with 
2.5% at 55 retirement

3.00%

2014 CalPERS OPEB Assumptions Model 
for miscellaneous public employees with 
2.5% at 55 retirement
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
are summarized in the following table:

Net OPEB Liability

The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 (measurement date), and the total 
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2017 (valuation date) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 (reporting date). The 
following summarizes the changes in the net OPEB liability during the year ended June 30, 2018:

Asset Class
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Long-Term 
Expected Rate of 

Return
US Large Cap 43.00% 7.795%
US Small Cap 23.00% 7.795%
Long-Term Corporate Bonds 12.00% 5.290%
Long-Term Government Bonds 6.00% 4.500%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) 5.00% 7.795%
US Real Estate 8.00% 7.795%
All Commodities 3.00% 7.795%

Total 100.00%

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Total OPEB 

Liability 
Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position
Net OPEB 
Liability

Balance at June 30,2017 278,553$         -$              278,553$       
Service cost 6,513              -                6,513            
Interest in Total OPEB Liability 16,476            -                16,476          
Employer contributions -                 232,909         (232,909)       
Actual investment income -                 10,234          (10,234)         
Benefit payments (7,909)             (7,909)           -                
Net changes 15,080            235,234         (220,154)       
Balance at June 30, 2018 293,633$         235,234$       58,399$         

Covered Payroll at Measurement Date 2,799,216$      
Total OPEB Liability as a % of covered payroll 10.49%
Plan Fid. Net Position as a % of Total OPEB Liability 80.11%
Service cost as a % of  covered payroll 0.23%
Net OPEB Liability as a % of covered payroll 2.09%
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $7,860 resulting 
from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year 
will be included as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

OPEB Expense

The following summarizes the OPEB expense by source during the year ended June 30, 2018:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Difference between actual and expected earnings -$                8,187$             
OPEB contribution subsequent to measurement date 7,860               -                  
Totals 7,860$             8,187$             

Year Ended June 30,
2019 (2,047)$            
2020 (2,047)             
2021 (2,047)             
2022 (2,047)             
2023 -                  
Thereafter -                  
Total (8,187)$            

Service cost 6,513$           
Interest in TOL 16,476           
Difference between actual and expected earnings (2,047)           
OPEB Expense 20,942$         
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The following summarizes changes in the net OPEB liability as reconciled to OPEB expense during 
the year ended June 30, 2018:

Sensitivity to Changes in the Discount Rate

The net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point 
higher, is as follows:

Sensitivity to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than current healthcare cost trend rates, is as follows:

NOTE 12 - SHARON HEIGHTS GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB COST SHARING PLAN

The West Bay Sanitary District has an agreement with Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (Club) 
to contribute toward the cost of the Facilities plan and the full cost incurred thereafter for the 
planning, design environmental review, permitting, construction and operation of a recycled water 
treatment facility on Club property.  West Bay will receive a grant easement in perpetuity for the 
location of the recycled water treatment facility and West Bay will have ownership of the treatment 
facility and all the recycled water, with the Club’s right to receive recycled water. 

West Bay has received approval for a California Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan to 
Design/Build a recycled water treatment facility.  The parties have a long-term agreement that 
establishes the terms and conditions of loan payments, easements, ownership of the facility, design 
criteria, and terms of operation and maintenance. 

58,399$         
(278,553)        
(220,154)        

Changes in deferred inflows 8,187             
Employer contributions 232,909         
OPEB Expense 20,942$         

Net OPEB liability ending
Net OPEB liability begining
Change in net OPEB liability

5%
(1% Decrease )

6%
(Current Rate)

7%
(1% Increase )

Net OPEB Liability 100,454$                  58,399$                    24,354$                    

Discount Rate

(1% Decrease )
4% to 5%

(Current Rate) (1% Increase )
Net OPEB Liability 23,388$                    58,399$                    101,679$                  

Trend Rate
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West Bay Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Through June 30, 2018, total costs for consultants, attorneys, studies, applications and reports have 
totaled $3,293,308.  The cost sharing breakdown for these expenditures is as follows:

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The District may be at risk to be a defendant in certain lawsuits which arise in the normal course of 
business.  District management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of such matters will not 
have a significant effect on the financial position of the District.

Cost 1 Design/Build
Phase Phase

Cost 588,272$     2,705,036$  
SHGCC (Club) 323,000$     -$             
SRF Grant 74,477$       -$             
SRF Loan -$             987,014$     
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually Required Contributions (Actuarially Determined) 413,896$      387,500$      399,280$      368,713$      
Contributions in Relation to Actuarially Determined Contributions 413,896        387,500        399,280        368,713        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$              -                -                -                

Covered Employee Payroll 2,795,654$   2,765,233$   2,544,628$   2,411,343$   

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 14.80% 14.01% 15.69% 15.29%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date: June 30, 2016
Assumptions Used: Entry Age Method used for Actuarial Cost Method

Level Percentage of Payroll and Direct Rate Smoothing
3.8 Years Remaining Amortization Period
Inflation Assumed at 2.75%
Investment Rate of Returns set at 7.5%
CalPERS mortality table using 20 years of membership data for all funds

** Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.

West Bay Sanitary District
Schedule of Pension Contributions - CalPERS

June 30, 2018
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of Net Pension Liability 0.12991% 0.12750% 0.12849% 0.10822%
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 5,120,961$    4,429,092$    3,524,991$    2,674,755$    
Covered Employee Payroll 2,765,233$    2,544,628$    2,411,343$    2,339,003$    

Proportionate Share of NPL
as a % of Covered Payroll 185.19% 174.06% 146.18% 114.35%

Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a % of the TPL 72.32% 73.58% 78.29% 83.03%

** Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.

West Bay Sanitary District

June 30, 2018
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
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Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30,

2018
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) 7,860$             
Less: actual contribution in relation to ADC (7,860)             
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    

Covered payroll 2,795,654$      
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.28%

Notes to Schedule:

Assumptions and Methods
Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Mortality

Service Requirement

Other Notes

West Bay Sanitary District
Schedule of OPEB Contributions

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
Entry-Age Normal

2014 CalPERS OPEB Assumptions Model for 
“public agency miscellaneous"
2014 CalPERS OPEB Assumptions Model for 
miscellaneous public employees with 2.5% at 55 
retirement

GASB 75 requires a schedule of contributions for the last ten fiscal years, or for as many years as are available 
if less than ten years are available.  GASB 75 was adopted as of June 30, 2018.

20 years
Level percentage of payroll, closed

6.00%
2.75%
3.00%
6.75%, Net of OPEB plan investment expenses, 
including inflation
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Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30,

Total OPEB liability 2018
Service cost 6,513$             
Interest 16,476             
Changes of benefit terms -                  
Differences between expected and actual experience -                  
Changes of assumptions -                  
Benefit payments (7,909)             

Net change in Total OPEB Liability 15,080             
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 278,553           
Total OPEB Liability - ending 293,633$         

Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions 232,909$         
Employer implict subsidy -                  
Employee contributions -                  
Net investment income 10,234             
Difference between estimated and actual earnings -                  
Benefit payments (7,909)             
Other -                  
Administrative expense -                  

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 235,234           
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -                  
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 235,234$         

Net OPEB liability 58,399$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability 80.11%

Covered employee payroll 2,799,216$      

Net OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered payroll 2.09%

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered payroll 10.49%

GASB 75 requires a schedule of contributions for the last ten fiscal years, or for as many years as 
are available if less than ten years are available.  GASB 75 was adopted as of June 30, 2018.

West Bay Sanitary District
Schedule of Net OPEB Liability

June 30, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
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1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
West Bay Sanitary District

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
West Bay Sanitary District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 7, 2018.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
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1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129
Tel: 408-217-8749 • E-Fax: 408-872-4159

info@cnallp.com • www.cnallp.com

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 7, 2018
San Jose, California
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 10 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Liz Bahrami, District Accountant 

 

Subject: Consideration to Approve the Post Audit FY2017-18 Internal 

Financial Statements & Analysis of Financial Position for the 

Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018 

 

 
Background 

Attached for the Board’s review are the District’s Pre-Audit Preliminary Internal 
Financial Statements & Analysis of Financial Position for Fiscal Year 2017-2018. 

 

 Total Revenues for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 were $28,470,190.  

This exceeds full year Budget by $1.5 million and results from favorable 

variances in all revenue sources with the exception of a shortfall from the 

maintenance agreement with the towns of Los Altos Hills and Woodside.  

Compared to prior year, Total Revenue was $415.1K higher and resulted 

primarily from the increase in sewer service fees. 

 Sewer Service Fees.  Sewer Service Fee revenue recognized during the year 

totaled $26,391,698.  This exceeded Budget by $996,057 or 4.0% resulting from 

an increase in residential accounts that came online during the year from several 

new multi-family residential properties developed within the District.   

 Permit & Inspection Fees and Connection Fees.  During the year the District 

received $293,578 in Permit Fees and $570,181 in Connection Fees.  Both are a 

direct result of the continued mixed-use commercial and residential expansion 

occurring within the District.  

 Flow Equalization exceeded Budget for the year by $2.9K due to a higher than 

anticipated CIP increase.  
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

 Other Operating Income – Los Altos Hills and Woodside.   Revenue from the 

outside maintenance agreements generated $299,955 from Los Altos Hills (LAH) 

and $35,359 from the Town of Woodside (TOW).  Revenue from both contracts 

fell short of Budget.  LAH with a total shortfall of $69.4K resulted from fewer 

sewer overflows than anticipated.  The Town of Woodside fell short of Budget by 

$22.0K due to the Town’s decision to not clean the entire system which had 

been originally included in the Budget.  The revenue from these contracts is 

largely offset by the labor and equipment cost to service these maintenance 

agreements. 

 Interest Income & Gain/(Loss) on Marketable Securities.   During the year, 

the reserve funds, with a collective year-end balance of $27,171,605, increased 

in market value by $79.7K.  Including accrued interest, the reserves ended the 

year with the following balances:  Operating Reserve $7,931,098; Emergency 

Capital Reserve $5,314,622; Capital Project Reserve $3,638,450; Rate 

Stabilization Reserve $5,577,745; Recycled Water Cash Flow Reserve 

$3,899,478; and the Recycled Water SRF Reserve $810,212.  The Recycled 

Water SRF Reserve was opened in March and funded by Sharon Heights Golf & 

Country Club (SHGCC) as a requirement of the SRF contract.   The earnings on 

this reserve will accrue to the benefit of SHGCC.   

The interest received from LAIF of $196,021 and Bank of the West Money 

Market of $12,452 exceeded Budget collectively by $158.5K.  During the year, 

interest rates offered by LAIF increased steadily, increasing from just under 1% 

at the beginning of the fiscal year to nearly 2% at year end.   Because of the 

favorable rates offered by LAIF, maturities in the Recycled Water Cash Flow 

Reserve were transferred to LAIF to provide liquidity to meet the project’s cash 

flow needs while taking advantage of the increasing rates.  During the year a 

total of $4,215,149 in maturities from this reserve were transferred to LAIF.  

While the interest rate from LAIF was increasing during year, the interest rate 

offered on our Bank of the West Money Market declined to 0.33%.  Therefore, 

receipts of sewer service fees received from the County were also deposited into 

LAIF.  The LAIF balance at year end was $24,485,203. 
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Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

The PARS Irrevocable Trust   set up in FY2016-17 to fund the other post-

employment benefits (OPEB) ended the year with a value of $247,323 gaining 

$12,089, or 5.14% (net of fees).   

 

 Total Expenses for the year of $20,691,023 were $559.4K, or 2.7% favorable to 

the full year Budget.  Favorable variances were realized in most all expense 

categories, with the exception of the unbudgeted year-end actuarial audit 

adjustments for pension expense (GASB 68) and OPEB expense (GASB 75); 

Election expense; Memberships; and the SVCW 2018 Bond issue.    The year-

end actuarial adjustments for GASB 68 and GASB 75 are not included in the 

annual Budget.   GASB 68, which became effective for FY2015 addresses 

accounting and reporting of the long-term obligation for pension benefits.  GASB 

75, which became effective for FY 2017-18, addresses accounting and financial 

reporting for OPEB (other post-employment benefits).  The District currently 

provides eligible retirees the statutory minimum supplemental contribution to 

their PERS medical insurance.  In FY2017-18 WBSD had 6 retirees receiving 

this benefit with a cost of $133 per month for each retiree.  The Election Expense 

was ($8.2K) negative resulting from the unanticipated charge for changing 

election years for District Board members from odd to even years.  Memberships 

were $13.3K negative due to higher participation of staff in CWEA membership 

and certifications of new employees.   The expense for the 2018 SVCW Bond 

payment exceeded Budget by $480.9K.  This is timing related resulting from the 

significantly larger payment due in August than in February.  Compared to prior 

year, total expenses were $2.1K higher, resulting primarily from increased 

SVCW debt.   

 Capital spending for the year was $6,274,703, or 63% of the total year Capital 

Budget.   

Administration: $8.1K spent on District Office improvements; $20.0K on Levee 

Survey & GPS Update; $33.7K on the Flow Monitoring Study; and $45.0K on the 

Sewer System Model Software.  
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Collection Facilities: Capital spending included $5.7K on purchase of Smart 

Cover manhole covers; and $72.1K on FERRF upgrades.   

Expenditures funded through the Equipment Replacement Fund:  

A total of $202.9K was spent from the Equipment Replacement fund on the 

following capital acquisitions: $12.7K on improvements to the District’s water 

truck; $109.3K on purchase of an F550 pickup w/utility bed for Rehab (Unit 209); 

$34.6K for an F150 pickup for the Construction Inspector (Unit 221); and $46.3K 

for Flo Dar monitors.   

Pump Station, Pipeline Replacement, Engineering, and Construction:  

Pump station spending included $56.3K on pump station upgrades.  

Design and Engineering for pipeline projects included: $72.1K for levee design. 

Construction spending for pipeline projects included: $2.91M for completion of 

the Belle Haven II and $45.8K on Belle Haven III.  

Reserve Transfers: 

Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund - $250K was transferred from the 

Capital Asset Fund to Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund.    

Rate Stabilization Reserve – In August, $2.6M was transferred to the Rate 

Stabilization/Bond Reserve.    Of this amount, $1.6M was from underspending in 

Non-Operating Expense (SVCW) in the prior FY16-17 and $1.0M per the 

FY2017-18 Budget.     

Resource Recovery:  Spending for the fiscal year on the SHGCC Recycled 

Water facility project totaled $1,762,271 and $233,815 for Bayfront.   These 

expenditures are being tracked separately from the Capital Asset Budget.     

 

Fiscal Impact  

 Total Revenues for the year were favorable to Budget by $1,512,157. 

 Total Expenses for the year were favorable to Budget by $559,400. 

 Cash and Investment balances increased by $8.8M over prior year with a cash 

and investment securities balance at year-end of $54,033,187 and accrued 

interest of $278,195. 
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Recommendation 

The District Accountant recommends the Board consider to accept the Preliminary 

Fiscal Year FY2017-18 Internal Financial Statements & Analysis of Financial Position 

as of Year End June 30, 2018.  

 

 

10-5



10-6



10-7



10-8



10-9



10-10



10-11



10-12



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 11 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion: Finance Advisory Group 

 
 
Background 

Approximately, two to three times a year the Finance Advisory Group meets and 
discusses options for the District’s investments and investment policy.  The Board 
President will report on the Advisory Group’s activities and lead a discussion on District 
finances.  
 
Analysis  

On December 3, 2018, the group met, reviewed and discussed the District’s finances 
and reserve funds.  

Fiscal Impact  

This item is informational only. 

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the Board discuss this item and possibly provide 
direction to the committee as needed.  No action is required or requested at this time. 
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WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 12 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Consider Resolution to Elect to the District Board, President, 

and Secretary, and Appoint a Treasurer and Consider 

Appointment of Committee Appointees and Alternates 

 

 
Background 

 
The Board requires Board members to serve as President, and Secretary effective 
January 1, 2019. This item requires nominations for election and Board selection of 
these positions.  The Treasurer position is also required and subject to Presidential 
appointment. 
 
Finally, Committee appointees and alternates must also be selected as necessary, to 
serve as District representatives for the SVCW Commission and the SBWMA JPA 
Board, and on Ad-Hoc committees and advisory groups such as Finance and Recycled 
Water. These appointments can be done by Presidential appointment. 
 
 
Analysis  

None 

 

Fiscal Impact  

None 

 

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the current District Board President preside over the 
Election of Officers and selection of committee appointees and alternates.  
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RESOLUTION NO.            (2018) 
 
 
 

*****  
RESOLUTION APPROVING ELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS OF 
THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD  
 
 
 
WHEREAS, The DISTRICT BOARD requires a President, Secretary and Treasurer; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT BOARD has requested nominations and voted by majority 
to elect the DISTRICT BOARD Officers as follows: 
 

President:        
 
Secretary:         
 
And, 
 
WHEREAS, the District President has appointed the following Board Member as 
Treasurer as follows: 
 
Treasurer:        
 
and, 
 
 
WHEREAS, these appointments are effective January 1, 2019. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the District Board of the West Bay 
Sanitary District, County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby approve the 
election and appointment of the above mentioned Officers of the District Board and 
conveys on these Officers all benefits, privileges, honors and responsibilities appointed 
unto the respective office. 
 
 
 
 

***** 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
regular meeting thereof held on 12th day of December, 2018, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Noes: 
 
 Absent: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 
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        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

  AGENDA ITEM 13 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Discussion and Direction on Recycled Water Projects – Sharon 

Heights and Bayfront, Including Project Status 

 
A discussion will be held on the Recycled Water Projects – Sharon Heights and Bayfront 
Facility and other events related to the recycled water project including financing, 
design/build issues and grant applications. The Board will have opportunity to provide 
direction to staff and legal counsel.  
 
 
The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or 
brochure prepared in whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State 
Water Resources Control Board for the West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water 
Project - Sharon Heights:  
 
Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the 
State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund is 
capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants from the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does 
mention of trade names or commercial products constitute endorsement or 
recommendation for use. 
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           WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 14 
 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management 

Authority (SBWMA) 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
Secretary Fran Dehn, will report on the November 15, 2018 Board meeting as well as 
any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business.  
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        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 AGENDA ITEM 15 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Phil Scott, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report & Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and 

Discussion on SVCW CIP Program and Financing 

 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), George Otte, will 
report on any pertinent items regarding SVCW as well as the Commission meeting on 
December 6, 2018.  
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